
 
 

TOWN OF HANNA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

AGENDA 
September 13, 2022 

 
 
1 CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 pm   
 

Swearing in – Councillor Vern Thuroo 
 

2 ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
 
3 DELEGATIONS 
 

 
4 PUBLIC PRESENTATION  

 
 

5 ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 

5.01 Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council – August 9, 2022 
5.02 Minutes of the Information Meeting of Council – August 31, 2022 

 
 

6 FINANCE REPORTS 
 

6.01 Accounts Payable 
6.02 Statement of Revenues & Expenses – August 2022 
6.03 Budget Overview – August 2022 

 
 

7 COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
 
8 SENIOR ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS REPORTS 
 

8.01 Chief Administrative Officer 
8.02 Director of Business & Communication 
8.03 Director of Public Works 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Regular Council Meeting Agenda – September 13, 2022    Page….2 
 
 

9 BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
9.01 Central Alberta Regional Assessment Board Agreement  
9.02 Waste Collection Agreement Extension 
9.03  Seniors Amenity Zone – Project Scope Amendment 
9.04 ATCO Electric Franchise Fee 
9.05 Returning Officers Report - 2022 By-election  
9.06 2022 Taxation Report 

 
 
10 BYLAWS 

 
10.01  Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board 

  
 

11 COUNCIL REPORTS & ROUNDTABLE 
 
 

12 CORRESPONDENCE ITEMS 
 

12.01 Ron Smith – Road Dust Concern 113 – 1 Street East 
12.02 Town of Tofield – Victim Services Redesign Concerns 
12.03 Response Letter from Minister Shandro – Town of Tofield 
12.04 Harvest Sky Animal Rescue – Branding and Name Change 
12.05 Office of the Lieutenant Governor – March – August 2022 Update 
12.06 Tanya Thorn – Towns South – Director Update 
12.07 BePrepared 8-Week Challenge Report 
12.08 Emergency Preparedness Week 2022 Summary Report 
12.09 Town of Wake 
12.10 The Hanna Seals – thank you  

 
 
13 CLOSED SESSION  
  

13.01 Land Matter as per FOIP Section 16 & 17 
13.02  Personnel Matter as per FOIP Section 17 
 
 

14 ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\05.00 Meeting Minutes.docx 

Date: September 13, 2022     Agenda Item No:  05.00 

Council Meeting Minutes 

Recommended Motion 

 
That the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council held August 9, 2022, be adopted as 
presented.  
 
That the Minutes of the Information Meeting of Council held August 31, 2022, be adopted as 
presented. 
 

Background 

 
Administration at each Regular Council Meeting will provide Council with the minutes of any 
Council meetings held since the previous regular council meeting.  Council must adopt the 
minutes of the meeting, either as presented or with amendments.   
 
Council members are encouraged to ask questions or seek clarification on any item in the 
Minutes. 
 

Communications 

 

Highlights of the report may be communicated in the newsletter as well as on the Town 
website and through the Town Social Media Program. 

 
Financial Implications 

 

 
 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 

Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 

 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
As required by the Municipal Government Act, once adopted, the Minutes will be signed by 
the presiding officer and a designated officer.  The Minutes will then be placed in the vault 
for safekeeping. 
 

Attachments 

 
1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council – August 9, 2022. 
2. Minutes of the Information Meeting of Council – August 31, 2022. 

 
Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
172-2022 
Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page... 071: 
 

TOWN OF HANNA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

AUGUST 9, 2022 
 

 
Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Council of the Town of Hanna held Tuesday, 
August 9, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. in the Town Council Chambers.    
 
Council Members Present: 
 Mayor Danny Povaschuk 
 Sandra Beaudoin 
 Fred Crowle   
 Sandra Murphy  
 Kyle Olsen 
 Angie Warwick – through video conference at 6:27 p.m. 
 
Administration Present: 

Kim Neill – Chief Administrative Officer 
Winona Gutsche – Director of Corporate Services  
Laurie Armstrong – Director of Business & Communication 
Brent Olesen – Director of Public Works 

 
 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Povaschuk called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.  
 
 
2.0        ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Beaudoin that the agenda for the August 9, 2022, Regular 
Council Meeting be adopted as presented. 
   Motion Carried. 
 
 
3.0         DELEGATIONS 
 

 3.01  Special Areas Board – Community Peace Officer Report 
  2022 First & Second Quarterly Reports 

 
Jamie Erickson, Community Peace Officer and Tracy Raypold, Peace Officer were not 
in attendance, Kim Neill Chief Administrative Officer will ask that they can attend the 
August 31, 2022 Council Information Meeting.   
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
173-2022 
Community Peace 
Officer 1st & 2nd 
Quarterly Reports  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
174-2022 
Regular  
Meeting Minutes  
 
 
 
 
 
175-2022 
Information  
Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
176-2022 
Accounts Payable 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna 
Regular Council Meeting  
August 9, 2022 
Page   072:  
 
 
Moved by Councillor Murphy that Council accepts the Special Areas Board – 
Community Peace Officers 2022 First & Second Quarterly Bylaw Enforcement 
Statistics Report.  
    Motion Carried. 
 
 
4.0 PUBLIC PRESENTATION  
 
The Chief Administrative Officer confirmed no one had contacted him regarding a 
request to speak with Council at this meeting.  
 
 
5.0 ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
 5.01 Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council – July 12, 2022 
 
Moved by Councillor Olsen that the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council held 
July 12, 2022 be adopted as presented. 
    Motion Carried. 
 
 5.02 Minutes of the Information Meeting of Council – July 27, 2022 
 
Moved by Councillor Murphy that the Minutes of the Information Meeting of Council 
held July 27, 2022 be adopted as presented. 
    Motion Carried 
 
 
6.0 FINANCE REPORTS  
 
 6.01 Accounts Payable  
 
Moved by Councillor Crowle that Council accepts the accounts payable listings for 
general account cheques 42294 – 42342 and direct deposit payments 001272 – 
001337 for information.  
    Motion Carried. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
177-2022 
Statement of 
Revenues & 
Expenses 
 
 
 
 
 
178-2022 
Budget Overview 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
179-2022 
Committee Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
180-2022 
SAO Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna 
Regular Council Meeting  
August 9, 2022 
Page   073:  
 
 

6.02 Statement of Revenue & Expense – July 2022 
 

Moved by Councillor Murphy that Council accepts the Statement of Revenue & 
Expense Report for July 2022 for information. 
    Motion Carried. 
 
 6.03 Budget Overview – July 2022 
 
Moved by Councillor Olsen that Council accepts the Budget Overview for June 2022 
for information. 
   Motion Carried. 
 
 
7.0 COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Moved by Councillor Beaudoin that Council accepts the Municipal Planning 
Commission Meeting Minutes of August 2, 2022 for information. 
 
 Motion Carried. 
 
 
8.0 SENIOR ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS REPORTS 
 
 8.01 Chief Administrative Officer 
  8.01.1  Community Services Foreman 
  8.01.2  Community Services Coordinator 
 8.02 Director of Business & Communication  
 8.03 Director of Public Works 
 
Councillor Warwick entered the meeting through video conference at 6:27 p.m. 
 
Moved by Councillor Beaudoin that Council accepts the Senior Administrative Officials 
reports 8.01 to 8.03 as presented for information. 
   Motion Carried.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
181-2022 
Shacker Crescent 
Install Speed Bumps 
 
 
 
 
182-2022 
Shacker Crescent 
Traffic Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
183-2022 
Senior Amenity Zone 
Project Tender 
Award 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna 
Regular Council Meeting  
August 9, 2022 
Page   074:  
 
 
9.0 BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
 9.01 Shacker Crescent Alley – Speed Bump Request 
 
Moved by Councillor Murphy that two temporary speed bumps be installed in the 
southern portion of Shacker Crescent on a trial basis.  
 
    Motion Carried. 
 
Moved by Councillor Olsen that Council accept the Traffic Information Report 
provided by Special Areas regarding traffic activity on the south portion of Shacker 
Crescent alley for information.  
    Motion Carried. 
 
 9.02  Senior Amenity Zone Project Tender Award 
 
Moved by Councillor Crowle that Council awards the tender for the Town of Hanna 
Seniors Amenity Zone Project to Urban Life Solutions Ltd. in the amount of 
$419,353.77 plus GST with the funds derived from the Canada Community 
Revitalization Fund and Town of Hanna surplus and reserves as approved in the 2022 
Capital Budget; subject to confirmation of the change in project scope from Western 
Economic Diversification. 
    Motion Carried. 
 
 
10.0  BYLAWS 
 
 10.01 Public Hearing - Bylaw 1025 – 2022 Land Use Amendment 
 
The Public Hearing is regarding Bylaw 1025-2022 to amend Land Use Bylaw No 967-
2012. 
 
Mayor Povaschuk opened the Public Hearing at 7:12 p.m. 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Kim Neill explained the rules of the procedure for the 
Public Hearing and provided an explanation of the purpose of the Public Hearing.  
Bylaw 1025-2022 is to amend Land Use Bylaw 967-2012 by re-designating Plan 
6133AW, Block 13, Lots 7-8 from Commercial Transition District (C-T) to General 
Residential District (R2).  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
184-2022 
Bylaw 1025-2022 
2nd Reading 
 
 
 
185-2022 
Bylaw 1025-2022 
3rd Reading 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
186-2022 
Council Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Regular Council Meeting  
August 9, 2022 
Page   075: 
 
 
Tracey Woitenko Senior Planner from Palliser Regional Municipal Services presented 
Council with a slide presentation, explaining which property is to be re-designated to 
residential.  The policy and procedures were followed, letters were sent out to 
adjacent property owners and no written comments were received.  
 
There was no one present to speak in favor or in opposition of the amendment. 
 
Mayor Povaschuk closed the Public Hearing for Bylaw 1025–2022 at 7:19 p.m. 
 
 
Moved by Councillor Murphy that Council give second reading to Bylaw 1025-2022, 
Land Use Amendment Plan 6133AW, Block 13, Lot 7-8 Re-designation Bylaw. 
 
    Motion Carried.    
 
Moved by Councillor Beaudoin that Council give third reading to Bylaw 1025-2022, 
Land Use Amendment Plan 6133AW, Block 13, Lot 7-8 Re-designation Bylaw. 
 
    Motion Carried.    
 
 
11.0  COUNCIL REPORTS AND ROUNDTABLE 
 
The Mayor and Councillors provided written or verbal reports regarding meetings and 
events attended since the last Regular Council meeting. 
 
Moved by Councillor Beaudoin that the Council Reports be accepted for information.  
 
    Motion Carried. 
 
 
12.0 CORRESPONDENCE 

 
12.01 Minister of Seniors and Housing – Needs Assessment 
12.02 Harvest Sky Newsletter – July 2022 
12.03 Ministry of Justice Email – August 5, 2022 – Future of Provincial Policing 

Website 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
187-2022 
Correspondence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
188-2022 
Closed Session 
 
 
 
 
189-2022 
Regular Session 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Regular Council Meeting  
August 9, 2022 
Page   076: 
    
 
Moved by Councillor Olsen that Council accepts Correspondence items 12.01 to 12.03 
for information.  
    Motion Carried.  
 
 
13.0 CLOSED SESSION  
 
 
Moved by Councillor Beaudoin that Council move to Closed Session at 7:38 p.m. to 
discuss agenda item 13.1 Personnel Matter as per FOIP Section 17. 
 
    Motion Carried.  
 
Moved by Councillor Warwick that Council move to Regular Session at 7:56 p.m. 
 
   Motion Carried.  
 

13.01 Personnel Matter 
 
No motion was presented.  
 
 
14.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Danny Povaschuk declared all business concluded and adjourned the meeting 
at 7:58 p.m. 
 
 
These minutes approved this 13th day of September 2022. 
 
 
        
    Mayor Danny Povaschuk  
 
 
              
    Chief Administrative Officer        
    Kim Neill 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
190-2022 
Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page... 077:  
 

TOWN OF HANNA 
INFORMATION COUNCIL MEETING 

August 31, 2022 
 
 

Minutes of an Information Meeting of the Council of the Town of Hanna held 
Wednesday, August 31, 2022 at 8:30 a.m. in the Town of Hanna Council Chambers.    
 
Councillors Present: 
 Mayor Danny Povaschuk 
 Sandra Beaudoin  
 Fred Crowle  
 Sandra Murphy 
 Kyle Olsen – entered at 8:57 a.m.  
 Angie Warwick 
 
Councillor-Elect Present:  
 Vern Thuroo 
 
Administration Present: 

Kim Neill – Chief Administrative Officer  
Winona Gutsche – Director of Corporate Services 
Laurie Armstrong – Director of Business & Communication 

 
 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Danny Povaschuk called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. 
 
 
2.0 ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Murphy that the agenda for the August 31, 2022 Information 
Council Meeting be adopted as presented. 
   Motion Carried. 
 
 
3.0 DELEGATIONS 
 

3.01  Alberta Health Services – Hanna Hospital Update  
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
191-2022 
AHS – Hanna 
Hospital Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
192-2022 
Community Peace 
Officer 1st & 2nd 
Quarterly Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Information Council Meeting  
August 31, 2022 
Page   078:  
 
 
Alberta Health Services representatives Janice Stewart – Chief Zone Officer, Heather 
Kipling – Communications Director and Barb Melhorn – Area Director provided 
Council with an update regarding services, staffing, initiatives, and activities at the 
Hanna Hospital.  
 
Councillor Olsen entered the Council Chambers at 8:57 a.m. 
 
Moved by Councillor Murphy that Council thanks the representatives from Alberta 
Health Services for their presentation and update on the activities and initiatives of 
the Hanna Hospital.   
    Motion Carried. 
 
 3.02  Special Areas Board – Community Peace Officer 
  2022 First and Second Quarter Reports 
 
Community Peace Officer Jamie Erickson and Peace Officer Tracy Raypold introduced 
themselves to Council and provided an update regarding the bylaw statistics for the 
first and second quarters of 2022.   
 
Moved by Councillor Beaudoin that Council thanks Community Peace Officer Jamie 
Erickson for the presentation of the Town of Hanna Bylaw Enforcement statistics for 
the first two quarters of 2022.  
    Motion Carried. 
 
 
4.0 PUBLIC PRESENTATION  
 
The Chief Administrative Officer confirmed that no one had contacted him to make a 
presentation to Council at this meeting. 
 
 
5.0 CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Neill reviewed his report with Council.  
 
 
6.0 BUSINESS ITEMS  
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Information Council Meeting  
August 31, 2022 
Page   079: 
 
 
7.0 COUNCIL ROUNDTABLE 
 
The Mayor and Councillors provided verbal reports regarding meetings or items of 
interest since the August 9, 2022, Regular Council Meeting. 
 
 
8.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Danny Povaschuk declared all business concluded and adjourned the meeting 
at 11:13 a.m. 
 
These minutes approved this 13th day of September 2022. 
 
 
        
    Mayor Danny Povaschuk  
 
 
              
    Chief Administrative Officer        
    Kim Neill 



 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\06.01 Accounts Payable.docx 

 

Date: September 13, 2022      Agenda Item No: 06.01 

Accounts Payable 

Recommended Motion 

 
That Council accepts the accounts payable listings for general account cheques 42343 –     
42379 and direct deposit payments 001338 – 001414 for information. 
 

Background 

 
Administration, at each regular council meeting, will provide Council with a detailed listing of 
the cheques processed since the previous regular council meeting for their information. The 
reports are separated by cheques and direct deposits.    The software program can combine 
both payment types, but not in ascending order.   The reports are attached for your review.  
 
Council members are encouraged to ask questions or seek clarification on any information 
presented. 
 

Communications 

 

N/A 

 
Financial Implications 

 

 
Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
N/A 

 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 

Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 

 

Attachments 

 
1. Accounts Payable Listing – Cheques 42343 – 42379 totaling $61,672.12. 
2. Accounts Payable Listing – Direct Deposits 001338 – 001414 totaling $200,562.63. 

 
Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 



 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\06.02 Statement of Revenue 
& Expense.docx 

Date: September 13, 2022      Agenda Item No: 06.02 

Statement of Revenue & Expense 

Recommended Motion 

 
That Council accepts the Statement of Revenue and Expense Report for August 2022 for 
information. 
 

Background 

 
Administration at each regular council meeting will provide Council with a Statement of 
Revenues and Expenses for the month recently concluded.  This statement will reflect the 
financial position of the Town relative to the approved budget.  
 
The budget figures have been updated from the 2022 Operating and Capital budgets 
approved by Council at the May 10, 2022, Regular Council Meeting.    The capital budget 
figures have been split from the operating in those departments where capital items are in 
the budget. 
 
The statement reflects the revenues and expenses to August 31, 2022. 
 
Council members are encouraged to ask questions or seek clarification on any information 
presented. 
 

Communications 

 
N/A 
 

Financial Implications 

 

 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 

Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 

 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
N/A 
 

Attachments 

 
1. Statement of Revenue & Expense Report – August 2022 

 
Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 































 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\06.03 Budget Overview.docx 

Date: September 13, 2022      Agenda Item No: 06.03 

Budget Overview 

Recommended Motion 

 
That Council accepts the Budget Overview for August 2022 for information. 
 

Background 

 
The Budget Overview consolidates information from the Statement of Revenues & Expenses 
report into categories that compare the revenue and expenses for each department of the 
Town.   To see the detail for each department, refer to the Statement of Revenues & 
Expenses.    
 
The Budget Overview provides the adopted budget figures and the actual month end totals 
for each department.    The final column compares the figures between budget and actual 
expense.    
 
As with the Statement of Revenues & Expenses, the budget figures have been updated from 
the 2022 Operating and Capital budgets approved by Council at the May 10, 2022 Regular 
Council Meeting.    The capital budget figures have been split from the operating in those 
departments where capital items are in the budget. 
 
The overview reflects the revenues and expenses to August 31, 2022.    
 
Council members are encouraged to ask questions or seek clarification on any information 
presented. 
 

Communications 

 
N/A 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Financial Implications 

 

 
Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
N/A 

 
Attachments 

 
1. Budget Overview – August 2022 

 
Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 

Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



TOWN OF HANNA Page  1

AUGUST 2022 BUDGET OVERVIEW - OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSES

 Council may use the Revenue & Expense Report (06.02) to review more detailed entries for each department 

2022 BUDGET 2022 2022 REVENUE 2022 2022 REVENUE DIFFERENCE

Adopted May 10, 2022 BUDGET BUDGET LESS ACTUAL ACTUAL LESS BUDGET TO

REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES ACTUAL

GENERAL MUNICIPAL -4,162,118 -3,940,893 -221,225

DRAW FROM RESERVES -73,616 0

REQUISITIONS 842,438 0 504,488 337,950

DOUBTFUL ACCTS 2,500 271 2,229

CONTINGENCY 0 0 0

-3,390,796 -3,436,134

COUNCIL 0 0 0

COUNCIL 150,250 75,079 75,171

150,250 75,079

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION -569,300 -168,504 -400,796

ADMINISTRATION 1,038,444 645,523 392,921

469,144 477,019

HANNA WAKE PROGRAM 0 0 0

STUDENT EXCHANGE 0 0 0

0 0

TAX RECOVERY PROPERTY -10,100 -9,000 -1,100

TAX RECOVERY PROPERTY 10,100 2,739 7,361

0 -6,261

POLICE -10,500 -3,538 -6,962

POLICE 72,800 72,794 6

62,300 69,256

SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT 0 0 0

SAFETY & RISK MNGMNT 4,750 2,453 2,297

4,750 2,453

FIRE -408,861 -49,174 -359,687

FIRE 270,840 103,087 167,753

CAPITAL - EQUPMENT 38,600 15,800 22,800

CAPITAL - RADIO EQUIP 45,000 0 45,000

CAPITAL - RESCUE TRUCK 200,000 0 200,000

145,579 69,714

EMERGENCY SERVICES -3,250 -3,250 0

EMERGENCY SERVICES 16,600 10,931 5,669

13,350 7,681

BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT -22,500 -22,288 -212

BYLAW 65,500 20,692 44,808

43,000 -1,596

DOG CONTROL -5,000 -4,150 -850

ANIMAL CONTROL 14,000 11,510 2,491

9,000 7,360



TOWN OF HANNA Page  2

AUGUST 2022 BUDGET OVERVIEW - OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSES

 Council may use the Revenue & Expense Report (06.02) to review more detailed entries for each department 

2022 BUDGET 2022 2022 REVENUE 2022 2022 REVENUE DIFFERENCE

Adopted May 10, 2022 BUDGET BUDGET LESS ACTUAL ACTUAL LESS BUDGET TO

REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES ACTUAL

PUBLIC WORKS -3,600 -4,160 560

PUBLIC WORKS 533,858  395,529 138,329

PUBLIC WORKS - CAPITAL -18,900 29,900  33,762 -3,862

560,158 425,131

STREETS & ROADS -430,439 0 -430,439

STREETS & ROADS CAPITAL 0 0 0

STREETS & ROADS 836,939 144,609 692,330

S & R - CAPITAL 0 0

406,500 144,609

AIRPORT -24,605 -4,246 -20,359

AIRPORT 46,410 35,934 10,476

AIRPORT CAPITAL 0 0 0

21,805 31,688

WATER 0

TREATMENT -1,181,500 -543,072 -638,428

       TREATMENT 835,800 486,617 349,183

LINES & DISTRIBUTION 0 -1,287 1,287

     LINES & DISTRIBUTION 286,600 114,321 172,279

CAPITAL - METER EQUIPMENT 27,500 0 27,500

-31,600 56,579

SANITARY SEWERS -297,600 -128,522 -169,078

SEWERS 203,660 91,311 112,349

SEWER - CAPITAL 0 0 0

-93,940 -37,212

GARBAGE -74,300 -37,854 -36,446

GARBAGE 75,700 49,594 26,106

1,400 11,740

REGIONAL WASTE SYSTEM -353,900 -176,242 -177,658

ANNUAL CONTRACT 353,800 167,201 186,599

-100 -9,042

F.C.S.S. -97,298 -160,861 63,563

ADMINISTRATION 41,400 22,576 18,824

PROGRAMS 129,900 77,923 51,977

YOUTH CLUB SUPPORT -14,350 25,400 25,267 133

VAN OPERATIONS 4,850 3,255 1,595

104,252 -31,839



TOWN OF HANNA Page  3

AUGUST 2022 BUDGET OVERVIEW - OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSES

 Council may use the Revenue & Expense Report (06.02) to review more detailed entries for each department 

2022 BUDGET 2022 2022 REVENUE 2022 2022 REVENUE DIFFERENCE

Adopted May 10, 2022 BUDGET BUDGET LESS ACTUAL ACTUAL LESS BUDGET TO

REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES ACTUAL

CEMETERY -16,600 -9,862 -6,738

CEMETERY 33,820 10,841 22,979

17,220 980

MUNCIPAL PLANNING COMM 0 0 0

MPC 500 0 500

500 0

COMMERCIAL OFFICE BUILDING -26,290 -18,000 -8,290

OFFICE BUILDING 26,290 4,867 21,423

0 -13,133

TOURISM 0 0 0

TOURISM 31,000 15,808 15,192

31,000 15,808

BUSINESS -13,000 -10,000 -3,000

& COMMUNICATION 192,520 142,494 50,026

179,520 132,494

VISITOR INFORMATION 0 0 0

BOOTH 19,580 9,116 10,464

19,580 9,116

SUBDIVISION -154,957 -39,286 -115,671

SUBDIVISION 154,957 155,759 -802

0 116,473

RECREATION -653,635 -5,621 -648,014

CS BOARD 3,500 50 3,450

RECREATION 86,850 49,057 37,793

CAPITAL - SENIORS AMENITY 490,200 0 490,200

-73,085 43,486

SWIMMING POOLS -86,800 -79,198 -7,602

POOLS 231,910 205,779 26,131

CAPITAL - WATERSLIDE PUMP 8,000 7,525 475

CAPITAL - JO POOL HEATER 15,000 0 15,000

168,110 134,105

ARENA -80,350 -42,938 -37,412

ARENA 299,470 200,743 98,727

ICE PLANT 34,700 17,324

CAPITAL - BRINE PUMP 32,000 29,291

CAPITAL - CONDENSOR 150,000 50,400 99,600

435,820 254,820



TOWN OF HANNA Page  4

AUGUST 2022 BUDGET OVERVIEW - OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSES

 Council may use the Revenue & Expense Report (06.02) to review more detailed entries for each department 

2022 BUDGET 2022 2022 REVENUE 2022 2022 REVENUE DIFFERENCE

Adopted May 10, 2022 BUDGET BUDGET LESS ACTUAL ACTUAL LESS BUDGET TO

REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES ACTUAL

PARKS SHOP 0 0 0

PARKS SHOP 18,830 14,157 4,673

18,830 14,157

CURLING RINK -49,700 -36,616 -13,084

CURLING RINK 63,440 41,065 22,375

ICE PLANT 34,700 17,322

CAPITAL - WALL REPAIR 10,000 0 10,000

58,440 21,771

BALL DIAMONDS -5,100 -4,000 -1,100

BALL DIAMONDS 38,460 14,266 24,194

33,360 10,266

GOLF COURSE 0 0 0

GOLF COURSE 2,690 2,739 -49

2,690 2,739

FOX LAKE  PARK -73,479 -89,692 16,213

FLP 98,060 38,660 59,400

CAPITAL - ELECTRICAL 30,000 6,994 23,006

54,581 -44,038

PARKS -125,000 0 -125,000

PARKS 248,200 198,687 49,513

CAPITAL - TENNIS COURTS 150,000 33,176 116,824

CAPITAL - SKATEPARK 25,000 0 25,000

298,200 231,863

SUMMER YOUTH -2,500 -17,790 15,290

PROGRAM 32,460 35,565 -3,105

29,960 17,775

COMMUNITIES IN BLOOM 0 0 0

COMMUNITIES IN BLOOM 0 0 0

0 0

SPRAY PARK 0 0 0

SPRAY PARK 10,430 4,695 5,735

10,430 4,695

KING-HUNTER PIONEER PARK  -23,000 0 -23,000

KING-HUNTER PIONEER PARK 45,350 15,134 30,216

22,350 15,134

SOCCER FIELDS -2,100 -2,100 0

SOCCER FIELDS 13,400 3,172 10,228

11,300 1,072



TOWN OF HANNA Page  5

AUGUST 2022 BUDGET OVERVIEW - OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSES

 Council may use the Revenue & Expense Report (06.02) to review more detailed entries for each department 

2022 BUDGET 2022 2022 REVENUE 2022 2022 REVENUE DIFFERENCE

Adopted May 10, 2022 BUDGET BUDGET LESS ACTUAL ACTUAL LESS BUDGET TO

REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES ACTUAL

MUSEUM 0 0 0

MUSEUM 14,700 12,285 2,415

14,700 12,285

LIBRARY -10,000 0 -10,000

LIBRARY 109,240 104,086 5,154

LIBRARY - CAPITAL -    10,000 0 10,000

   WATER DIVERSION

109,240 104,086

CENTENNIAL PLACE -84,450 -44,835 -39,615

CENTENNIAL PLACE 164,680 97,157 67,523

CENTENNIAL PLACE CAPITAL 0 0 0

80,230 52,322

COMMUNITY CENTRE -40,008 -18,898 -21,111

CENTRE 61,940 41,862 20,078

CENTRE CAPITAL - CLEANER 5,000 4,689 311

26,932 27,654

LIONS HALL -2,400 -1,800 -600

LIONS HALL 10,690 4,403 6,287

8,290 2,603

RESERVES 0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0

TOTAL REVENUE -9,211,106 -5,677,675 -3,533,431

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,211,106 4,702,434 4,508,672

TOTAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 0 -975,240



 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\08.00 Senior Administrative 
Officials Reports.docx 

Date: September 13, 2022      Agenda Item No: 08.00 

Senior Administrative Officials Reports 

Recommended Motion 

 
That Council accepts the Senior Administrative Officials reports 8.01 -  8.03 as presented for 
information.  
 

Background 

 
Senior Administration prepare reports on the highlights and activities of their department 
since the last Council meeting for Council’s information.   Council members are encouraged 
to ask questions or seek clarification on any information presented.    
 
If a written report is not submitted, members of Senior Administration attend Council 
meetings to provide a verbal report. 
 

Communications 

 
Highlights of the reports may be communicated in the newsletter as well as on the Town 
website and through the Town Social Media Program. 
 

Financial Implications 

 

 
Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
N/A 

 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 

Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 

 

Attachments 

 
1. Chief Administrative Officer   
2. Director of Business & Communication   
3. Director of Public Works 

 
Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 



1 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: September 13, 2022 
 
To: Mayor & Council  
 
From:  Kim Neill 
 Chief Administrative Officer  
 
Re: CAO Report – September 13, 2022, Council Meeting 
 
 
 
1. Tax Recovery Auction 
 
The Tax Recovery Auction is set for 2PM on September 12th in Council Chambers.  Two of 
the three property owners with property set to be auctioned have been in and have entered 
into Tax Payment Agreements leaving only one residential property to be part of the auction 
as of this time.  I will provide an update on the auction at the meeting. 
 
2. Signage Project 
 
The tender for the signage project was extended by Harvest Sky based on feedback from 
the pretender meeting from August 19th to August 31st.  As of the deadline there were five 
bids received for the project which included the Village of Youngstown project.  The prices 
for the Hanna project ranged from $244,374.30 to $516,210.72.  Upon review of the bids 
including previous work, warranty, bid bond, etc. all parties including the Town of Hanna, 
Village of Youngstown, Harvest Sky Economic Development Corporation and 818 Studios 
recommend the bid from Hi Signs in the amount of $262,227.41.  It was the second lowest 
bid received but they met or exceeded all the requirements asked for in the tender. The low 
bid from Backflag Projects was $244,374.30 or $17,853.11 less than the Hi Signs bid but is 
not considered compliant as they did not provide a bid bond or notice of WCB coverage.    
Harvest Sky will be entering into a contract with Hi Signs to complete the work as per their 
tender and it is anticipated that the work will be complete prior to March 31, 2023, to meet 
the grant requirements. 
 
3.  Tennis Court Resurfacing Project 
 
The quote to resurface the tennis courts that was accepted by Council included 2 tennis 
courts and 4 pickleball courts.  In further discussions with the Pickleball club regarding the 
design and the number of courts, the club has asked if the design could be changed to 
accommodate an additional 2 pickleball courts (6 in total).  The contractor can accommodate 
this request, but it is an additional $5,953 plus GST.  Administration based on timing to have 
the work completed authorized this expense. 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

4. Land Use Bylaw Review 
 
Administration is meeting with representatives of Palliser Regional Municipal Services on 
September 13th and 14th to review the preliminary draft of the Town of Hanna Land Use 
Bylaw. 
 
5. Palliser Airshed Alliance – Air Monitoring Station 

Administration was contacted by a representative of the Palliser Airshed Society (PAS) 
regarding the interest the Town of Hanna may have in an air monitoring station/trailer being 
placed in the Town of Hanna.  PAS may have a portable air monitoring station available to 
them from the Province of Alberta and since they don’t have anything monitoring air quality 
in the Hanna region, they are interested in having this unit placed in Hanna. Administration 
indicated we were very interested in that possibility and talked about the timing being good 
with the resident concerns of the air quality since the introduction of the GFL fertilizer 
blending facility in Hanna.   

PAS was established in the Spring of 2003 to monitor ambient air quality in the Medicine 
Hat / Redcliff region and has expanded to cover the southeastern portion of the province. 
PAS currently maintains three continuous monitoring sites, 8 PM2.5 Sensors (Brooks, 
Medicine Hat, Oyen, Bassano, Vauxhall, Bow Island, and Milk River), and 16 passive 
sampling sites distributed throughout the airshed.  PAS is currently working with Heartland 
Generation to install a Purple Air Monitor in Hanna. 

The permanent continuous monitoring site at Crescent Heights (Medicine Hat) station 
provides real time data for NO2/NOx, SO2, O3, CO, THC, and PM2.5 and meteorological 
data. In addition, there are two sites serviced by portable air pointers, currently located in 
Brooks and Taber which provide real time data for NO2/NOx, O3, and PM2.5.  

The monitoring PAS is proposing for the Town of Hanna will be similar to that in Medicine 
Hat and would provide real time data for NO2/NOx, SO2, and PM2.5 and Meteorological 
Data.  
 
Administration has discussed potential sites for this air monitoring trailer and PAS will be 
sending out a representative to look at the options.  The trailer does require access to Wi-
Fi as well as power which will come at the expense of the Town. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

Attached is a picture of the portable monitoring station that maybe available from the 
province for this fall for a 12-month loan.  
 
The approximate dimensions hitch to the tower base is 23’ 9” L x 9’ W x 14’ 8” H. The 
shelter itself is 18’ x 9’. A picture of the PAML is shown below.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

Should this unit be unavailable PAS would be able to provide an air pointer unit which is 
approximately the size of a refrigerator. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

Meetings Attended: 
 
• Celebrate Canada – Gord Bamford Concert – August 11th, 19th, 25th & 29th  
• Business Hub – Economic Development Collaboration – August 16th & September 6th    
• Alberta Municipalities – CAO Meeting – Drumheller – August 23rd 
• Senior Amenity Zone Project Meeting – August 30th & September 1st  
• APEX – South Municipal Road Gas Line Replacement Project – August 31st 
• Alberta Municipalities – Webinar – Future of Municipal Government – September 8th 
• Village of Delia Community Meeting – September 8th 
• PRMS – Funding Formula Review Meeting – September 12th 
• Tax Recovery Auction – September 12th 
• Hanna Signage Project Meeting – September 12th  
• PRMS - Land Use Bylaw Review Meeting – September 13th 
• Council Information Meeting – July 27th 
• Municipal Planning Commission – August 2nd 
• Bylaw 1025-2022 – Rezoning Meeting – August 9th  

 
Upcoming Events: 
 
• PRMS - Land Use Bylaw Review Meeting – September 13th 
• Municipal Planning Commission Meeting – September 15th 
• Business Hub – Economic Development Collaboration – September 20th & October 4th   
• Alberta Municipalities Conference – Calgary – September 21st – 23rd  
• Council Information Meeting – September 28th 
• Joint Use – Planning Agreements – Webinar – September 29th   
 



T 403.244.8188

E info@818studio.ca

W www.818studio.ca

818 studio ltd.

1812-14A ST SW CALGARY, AB  T2T 3W6

1 September 2022


Mark Nikota

Harvest Sky Region Economic Development Corporation

Box 1255, 203 2 Avenue West

Hanna, Alberta  T0J 1P0


Re: Hanna and Youngstown Signage Project 
RFP 2002-03; APC reference AB-2022-04882 

Dear Mark,


We are pleased to provide an analysis of the bids received in response to the signage tender. Six bids were 
received from companies providing a wide range of experience.


Overview 
1. PM Signs submitted their bid after the close and is therefore non-compliant. However, the client directed that 

the bid be included in the bid analysis.

2. Landmark Sign did not include a separate cost for remediation; confirmation as to whether remediation is 

included in the sign unit price will be required if Landmark is the successful bidder.

3. Unit prices were requested for two contingent items (solar power supply and non-powered aluminum letters) 

in addenda 4.

i) Not all bidders included costs for the contingent items. Please see the attached spreadsheets for unit 

costs and contingent costs.

ii) Blanchette Neon commented that, in their experience, solar lights do not shine as brightly as wired lights. 

In addition, they noted that the batteries would need to be removed when temperatures dip below -30C.

4. Several of the bids contained small calculation errors. As per the tender documents, the unit prices are 

considered to represent the bidders’ intention. 818 undertook a review of the calculations and the 
discrepancies are noted in the table below. The small calculation errors with less than $25 difference are not 
highlighted in the table.

i) Blackflag’s bid contain larger calculation errors, resulting in a total about $15,000 lower than indicated by 

the unit prices. 

ii) Landmark Sign’s calculation errors resulted in a bid of about $300 lower than the unit price.  

mailto:info@818studio.ca
http://www.818studio.ca


5. The tender documents required the submission of proof of insurance, a bid bond, and safety documentation 
(COR and WCB clearance). A summary of the documents submitted is included in this table.


6. PM Signs indicated they had requested a bid bond and were still waiting to receive the documentation.

7. Landmark Sign indicated they are waiting for an updated COR for their agent, Media Resources. Landmark 

provided an expired temporary letter of certification.


8. We requested any information missing from the bids and received several documents within the 24 hours 
from the bid close.


9. Most companies indicated a three month timeline for the work. Knight Signs indicated that the timeline was 
ambitious.


bidder Hanna Youngstown total (excluding GST and 
contingency)

stated bid 
amount

review 
adjustment

stated bid 
amount

review 
adjustment

stated bid 
amount

review 
adjustment

Knight 
Signs

$ 516,210.64 $ 516,210.72 $ 268,694.00 $ 268,695.00 $ 784,905.64 $ 784,905.72

Blanchette 
Neon

$ 443,552.00 $ 443,574.00 $ 236,199.00 $ 236,199.00 $ 679,751.00 $ 679,773.00

Landmark 
Sign

$ 375,975.00 $ 376,285.00 $ 248,636.00 $ 248,636.00 $ 624,611.00 $ 624,921.00

PM Signs $ 359,860.98 $ 359,860.98 $ 236,319.00 $ 236,319.00 $ 596,179.98 $ 596,179.98

Hi Signs $ 282,227.64 $ 262,227.41 $ 171,769.49 $ 171,769.45 $ 433,997.13 $ 433,996.86

Blackflag 
Projects

$ 238,074.31 $ 244,374.30 $ 137,899.07 $ 146,757.66 $ 375,973.38 $ 391,131.96

bidder
total bid, 
excluding 
contingency 
and GST

insurance bid 
bond warranty

commit to 
meet 
timeline?

COR WCB technically 
compliant

Knight 
Signs $784,905.72 $5,000,000 yes 1 year yes yes yes yes

Blanchette 
Neon $679,773.00 $8,000,000 yes 2 years yes yes yes yes

Landmark 
Sign $624,921.00 $5,000,000 yes 5 years yes no yes no

PM Signs $596,179.98 $5,000,000 no 3 years yes yes yes no

Hi Signs $433,996.86 $9,000,000 yes 1 year yes yes yes yes

Blackflag 
Projects $391,131.96 $5,000,000 no 1 year yes yes no no

signage project bid analysis  // 2022 09 01	
page 2



10. All bidders submitted a package of materials that included examples of completed work. A dropbox transfer 
link will be provided in the covering email.


Recommendation 
1. 818 studio does not recommend awarding to the lowest bidder. Blackflag Projects did not provide the 

required bid bond and indicated they would not be able to meet the requirement of a 50% bond if awarded 
the contract.


2. Both Blanchette Neon and Hi Signs submitted compliant bid packages and would provide the level of service 
required for these projects.


3. We recommend that the project be awarded to Hi Signs for the following reasons.

i) Provided value engineering (replacing concrete piles with screw piles) in costing.

ii) Provided value engineering (replacing cedar posts with aluminum w/wood grain) in costing.

iii) Indicated they have materials in sufficient stockpile to meet project scope.


Please let me know if you have any questions.


Yours truly,


Jennifer Koppe, M E. Des., M Land. Arch. 
AALA Associate (Intern) 
landscape designer 

signage project bid analysis  // 2022 09 01	
page 3



Community Services Foreman Report – Kevin Olsen 

September Council Report 

 

Tennis Court 

- Resurfacing is underway 
- Pickleball has suggested some minor changes and we are working with Tomko to see what the 

excess cost would be.  Paved on August 25th and needs 2 weeks curing time before being surfaced 
and painted. 

Rodeo 

- Prep has been done 
- Announcers stand put up 
- 8 portable bleachers added 
- Rodeo Committee setting up chutes, corrals etc. on September 3rd 

Arena 

- Staff painted the Arena permanent bleachers, flooring, and dressing rooms 

Lions Hall  

- Lights have been upgraded 
- Main hall had 28 fixtures, replaced with 14 LED fixtures 
- Washrooms and hallway also changed to LED 

Swimming Pool  

- Closed for Humans on Aug 28th, closed for dogs Aug 29th 
- Winterizing will start Aug 29th, takes approx. 2 weeks to complete 

Parks  

- Summer Staff done August 30th 
- Rhonda Blake was hired for the Operator 3 position and will start Sept 6th 

Other 

- Safety and maintenance concerns have been brought forward regarding the south Blvd. of the 
Town Office.  Have received a quote for synthetic turf to replace river rocks and grass. 
(attached) 

- Working with Delia Ag Society to have their ice going in early to accommodate our users, we will 
supply staffing assistance for making ice.  

 



                  Mirage Turf Systems 
622 Sierra Madre Court SW, Calgary, AB T3H 3M5 

Office #: (403) 228-6927    
       

Quote 
 

August 2022 
Quote # 290-22RS 

 
Customer:     Town of Hanna 
  302-2 Ave W 
  Hanna, AB 
  C/o Kevin Olsen-  

Re: Artificial Turf Quote- Town Office Boulevard Area 
                               
Description of Job: 
Supply and install of artificial turf (Durablade 65 or Triblend 70) for the proposed property of approx. 
940sq.ft. Includes excavation of existing sod/dirt and river rock, supply and install of compacted road crush 
sub-base of approx. 4-6’’, 10mm limestone “topper”, supply and install of Durablade 65 or Triblend 70 with 
top dressing. The turf will be laid, cut, seamed, spiked and top dressed over the area.  
      
Cost:  
Durablade 65 Artificial turf of approximately 940sq.ft @ $15.50/sq.ft……………………………….$14,570.00 + GST 
Triblend 70 Artificial turf of approximately 940sq.ft @ $16.00/sq.ft…………………………………$15,040.00 + GST 
 
*$0.50-$1.00/sq.ft discount pending other projects supplied and installed at the same time (Actual discount based on total volume 
purchased between 4 projects quoted) 
 
Install Date:   To be determined.  (Subject to approval) 
 
Warranty:   The turf will carry a Limited Warranty of 15 years by Rymar Turf.  
 
A formal contract and a deposit of 50% of the Total Purchase Price will be required before commencement of 
the project.  Quote is good until November 15, 2022.*  
All material is guaranteed to be specified, and the above work to be performed in accordance and agreement of 
the customer and specifications submitted for above work.   The project will be completed in a professional 
and timely workmanlike manner.   
 
Submitted by: Randy Steinley                          Date: August 24, 2022 
   Mirage Turf Systems.  (Licensed, Insured and Bonded) 
 *Prices may be subject to change after the “Good Until Date” by the discretion of Mirage Turf Systems. 
                                                                



Community Services Coordinator Report – Michele Toews 

 

EPIC Adventures 

EPIC Adventures ended for the year on August 26th.  The program ran full days Monday-Thursday and half days on 
Fridays this year. Attendance has averaged around 17 participants/day with numbers as high as 33 kids for some 
of the out-of-town trips. 67 different children attended at least one day over the course of the summer. Overall, 
the program seemed to be well received by children and parents with lots of positive feedback.  

Music in the Park 

Music in the Park wrapped up its summer series on Sunday, August 28th. All nine performances were able to be 
held outdoors as the weather cooperated with our plans. Staff from the pool, parks, and EPIC assisted the program 
with set up/take down and hosting attendees. Volunteers Gwen Snell and Will Warwick helped to make the 
program a success by hosting the artists, introducing acts, and running the sound equipment. Attendance numbers 
varied, but overall, the program was well attended throughout the summer.  

Fall Registration Fair 

The annual Fall Registration Fair was held on Wednesday, September 7th at the Community Centre. 24 
organizations attended with tables showing off what programs they have to offer in Hanna. Kids activities, adult 
service clubs, and community resources were among the participants. Great turn out of people coming through 
to sign up for activities, with young families making up the majority.  

Drive Happiness 

We currently have three volunteer drivers approved for the program and have completed our first ride! One of 
our volunteer drivers was able to assist a senior with a trip to Stettler for errands and shopping. Unfortunately, 
we have had to decline a few rides due to no volunteers being available. Majority of requests seem to be for out-
of-town medical appointments. The all-day commitment on a weekday and need to drive in the city are hurdles 
to finding available drivers. Watch for more volunteer recruitment information in this month’s newsletter.  

Community Concert Celebrating the End of Covid 

We are finalizing details for our free Community Concert using our federal grant dollars. Save the date for Friday, 
October 21st. More details coming soon! 

New Programs for Fall 

This fall we will be offering kickboxing classes once again. Participants must pre-register at the Town Office. $75 
for a 6-week session. 

We will also be offering a FREE Adult Community Choir. Taking place on Tuesdays, starting September 27th, from 
12:30-1:30 pm at Centennial Place. No experience required, and no need to register. Drop in and connect with 
others through music.  

 



COUNCIL REPORT 
 
DATE: September 13, 2022 
 
PRESENTED BY: Brent Olesen, Director of Public Works 
 
 
• Since the August 9, 2022 Council meeting, the public works department has been busy with 

the following items: 
 

 Water & Sewer    
• Repaired 3 water and sewer services.   
• Notified Alberta Environment and local landowners that we will be draining 

water from the final cell of the sewage lagoon to Bullpound Creek.  The required 
samples were sent for analysis. Water from the storm drains and sewage 
treatment plant flows through four cells at the sewage lagoon.   Solids settle to 
the bottom as the water moves through the cells.   It is released from the final 
cell to Bullpound Creek.  

• Continue to haul sewer from the holding tanks at the special areas shop, 
airport, fox lake park, and the triplex every Friday. 

• Have made arrangements with Brooks Asphalt to install the water and sewer 
lines for the 5th Street Development. 
 

 Road Maintenance 
• Special Areas loaned the Town the use of two graders to allow our crew to  

chew up the road material on Railroad Avenue and then level the surface, using 
the material and oil in the road.       

• The speed bumps for Shacker Crescent alley have been ordered.  
• Cleaning streets and avenues with the street sweeper as we have time.   
• Completed the line painting on streets and parking lots with yellow paint.  Were 

unable to get more white paint.  
• Sidewalks and curbs needing repair have been identified by Chief 

Administrative Officer Neill and PW Foreman Wes Rorabeck.  Mudrack 
Concrete Ltd. will be in Town to do the repairs.  

• Discussed the pavement patches needed with Brooks Asphalt.  They will be in 
Hanna in October to complete the work.   
 

 Meetings 
• I am attending the Monday morning Director’s meetings. 
 

 Airport  
• Routine maintenance at the airport – check the terminal building for 

maintenance issues, check the runway lights and windsock, haul garbage, etc.  
 

 Cemetery    
• Opened 2 columbarium niches and 2 cremation graves this month. 
• We did some more concrete removal, cleanup and reseeding of grass.  

 



 General   
• The transmission needs to be replaced on the 2009 GMC parks truck, but it is 

difficult to get a replacement, so the truck is out of commission.  
• Did some work on the dirt in the arena in preparation for the Indoor Rodeo.   
• Our summer student, Rob Thandi was finished work on August 19.  

 
       
 

   
 

 
 
 



 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\09.01 Central Alberta 
Assessment Agreement.docx 

Date:  September 13, 2022      Agenda Item No: 9.01 

Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board 

Agreement 

Recommended Motion 

 
That Council directs the Chief Administrative Officer to enter into the Agreement for Regional 
Assessment Review Services with the City of Red Deer to establish membership for the Town 
of Hanna as a Partner municipality in the Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board, 
effective January 1, 2023.    
 

Background 

 
As part of the Government of Alberta Municipal Accountability Program (MAP) it was 
identified that the Town of Hanna was not meeting the requirement to establish an 
Assessment Review Board and did not have any members appointed to an intermunicipal 
assessment review board nor does the Town of Hanna have a Clerk appointed.   
 
In the spring of 2010 the Town of Hanna and the municipalities of the Village of Empress, 
Village of Cereal, Village of Youngstown, Town of Oyen, M.D. of Acadia No. 34, and Special 
Areas No. 2, No. 3 and No. 4 had intentions of establishing a Joint Assessment Review Board 
to address changes the province had instituted with Bill 23 of the Municipal Government Act. 
As the municipalities had limited to no assessment appeals, it was determined that a joint 
board would be the best solution.  
 
Bill 23, the Municipal Government Amendment Act, 2009, made amendments to restructure 
assessment review boards and clarify their roles and responsibilities, enhance training for 
board members and administrators, increase access to information for citizens and ensure 
province-wide consistency, accountability and transparency.  The amendments: 

 Better defined the composition, roles and jurisdiction of the boards that hear 
assessment complaints; 

 Enhanced the training and qualification requirements of board members and board 
administrators; 

 Improved access to information for taxpayers and mandate disclosure between 
parties to a complaint; 

 Outlined the timelines for the steps in the complaint process; and  



 

 

 Set out consequences for either party if the disclosure and timeline requirements are 
not met.  

 
Bill 23 created the requirement to have a Local Assessment Review Board (LARB) to hear 
matters that are shown on an assessment notice for residential property with 3 or fewer 
dwelling units, farmland, or a tax notice other than a property tax notice and a Composite 
Assessment Review Board (CARB) to hear all other matters. Decision requirements of both 
the Local Assessment Review Board and the Composite Assessment Review Board are 
specifically set out in the legislation.  The Composite Assessment Review Board can award 
COSTS in certain circumstances.  Appeals of decisions of both boards are now only to the 
Alberta Court of Queen's Bench.  There is no longer a right to appeal to the Municipal 
Government Board.   
 
As a result of these changes, the specific training requirements for board members and 
administrators and the limited to no appeals in the region, the municipalities made plans to 
establish a Joint Assessment Review Board through an agreement with Palliser Regional 
Municipal Services. On May 11, 2010, Council passed Bylaw 954-2010 establishing an Joint 
Assessment Review board, however as of that date there were no members appointed by 
any member municipality to the intermunicipal assessment review board, nor had a clerk 
been appointed. 
 
Administration is not sure why, but the Joint Assessment Review Board did not get 
implemented and the Town has been negligent in not having an Assessment Review Board 
established and trained or having joined an Intermunicipal Assessment Review Board.  It has 
not been an issue as there have been no assessment appeals the Town has had to deal with 
during this period of time. Since the MAP review and this deficiency being pointed out, 
Administration has tried to generate interest in a Palliser Regional Municipal Services Joint 
Assessment Review Board which would be set up similar to the Palliser Intermunicipal 
Subdivision and Development Appeal Board.  Administration believes the interest in creating 
a local Joint Assessment Review Board is not a priority with other members of PRMS. 
 
Many municipalities have joined the Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board 
which is coordinated by the City of Red Deer.  The fact that in the Province of Alberta’s view 
it is seen as a deficiency that the Town of Hanna has not met the requirements to establish 
a board, Administration reached out to the City of Red Deer who serve as the Coordinator 
for the Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board to see if they had capacity to add 
the Town of Hanna as a partner municipality.  They have indicated there is capacity.  
 
In order to join, the Town of Hanna is required to enter into an Agreement with the City of 
Red Deer who serves as the coordinator and pass a Bylaw to establish a Joint Assessment 



 

 

Review Board that will enable municipalities to provide a mechanism for citizens to appeal 
their property tax assessment and tax notices. 
 
The highlights of joining this Board include the following: 

 There is an annual fee of $2,000 plus GST to belong to be a member. 
 If the Board is required to hear an appeal, then the costs of that appeal will be 

borne by the partner municipality where the appeal originates. 

 
The following services are provided by the coordinator to all Partnering Municipalities 

on payment of the Membership Fee:  

 Training for board member(s) & clerk(s) 
 In-services / Assistant Clerk Workshops 
 Production of Assistant Clerk Toolbox 
 Business Travel for Advocacy 

 
Communications 

 
Report highlights may be communicated through the Town of Hanna social media program. 
 

Financial Implications 

 

 
Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
N/A 
 

Attachments 

 
1. Agreement between the City of Red Deer and the Town of Hanna for the 

provision of Regional Assessment Review Services. 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 

Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 

 

 
Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



Dated this   day of     , 20 . 
 

Between: 

The City of Red Deer 

 (“Coordinator”) 
 

- and - 
 

      
 (“Partner Municipality”) 

 

AGREEMENT FOR REGIONAL ASSESSMENT REVIEW SERVICES 

BACKGROUND 

A. Councils for City of Red Deer and the Partner Municipality have passed bylaws to establish a 
joint Regional Assessment Review Board having jurisdiction within their boundaries.  

B. The City of Red Deer is the Coordinator for property assessment complaints for the residents of 
Partner Municipalities who enter into this agreement and who enact a bylaw in substantially the 
same form as the Bylaw attached in Schedule A.  

C. As the Partner municipality wishes to join the Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review 
Board membership, this agreement shall establish the terms of membership and the 
administrative and policy framework of the Board.      

The Parties agree as follows: 

1. AGREEMENT 

1.1. The following schedules form part of this agreement:  

Schedule A – Sample Bylaw 

Schedule B- Membership and Other Fees  

Schedule C – Services 

2. DEFINITIONS 

In this Agreement, unless the context provides otherwise, the following words or phrases shall have 
the following meanings: 

2.1. “Assessor” is the person appointed by the Partner Municipality to assess residents’ property. 

2.2. “Assistant Clerk” is a staff person employed by the Partner Municipality to provide service to 
the Complainant; 

2.3. “CARB” is Composite Assessment Review Board as defined by the Municipal Government Act 
and the Matters Relating to Assessment Complaints Regulation; 



- 2 - 

 

2.4. “Clerk” is the staff person appointed by the CAO of the City of Red Deer to act as the 
Designated Officer to the Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board; 

2.5. “Complainant” is an assessed person or taxpayer of the Partner Municipality who files a 
complaint regarding that person’s tax or assessment notice; 

2.6. “Coordinator” is The City of Red Deer. 

2.7. “LARB” is Local Assessment Review Board as defined by the Municipal Government Act and the 
Matters Relating to Assessment Complaints Regulation; 

2.8. “Regional Board Review Committee” is the committee, appointed by the Partner municipalities 
to appoint board members to the Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board; 

2.9. “Regional Board” means the Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board appointed to 
hear complaints about assessment or tax notices established in accordance with sections 454 
and 455 of the Municipal Government Act.  

3. PARTNER MUNICIPALITY RESPONSIBILITIES 

3.1. The Partner Municipality is entitled to receive Regional Board services provided it has passed a 
Bylaw in the form attached as Schedule A and pays the membership fee identified in Schedule 
B. 

3.2. The Partner Municipality will participate annually in establishing the Regional Board Review 
Committee. 

3.3. The Partner Municipality will pay the membership fee in consideration for the services to be 
provided by the Coordinator. To continue participation, the membership fee is to be paid 
annually by January 31. The membership fee covers Services as defined in Schedule C.  

3.4. Upon receipt of a complaint from an assessed person or taxpayer of the Partner Municipality 
and in addition to the membership fee, the Partner Municipality will pay additional 
administration and board fees identified in Schedule B.  Any fees are payable 30 days upon 
receipt of invoice. 

3.5. If legal services are required for general purposes to facilitate the administration of the 
complaint, (i.e. procedure questions) the cost of the service will be paid by the Coordinator. 

3.6. If legal services are required for issues that relate to a specific complaint, the Coordinator will 
advise the Partner Municipality which has jurisdiction over the appeal and the cost of the 
service will be payable by the Partner Municipality, 30 days upon receipt of invoice. This 
includes legal services for challenges to the Court of Queen’s Bench. 

3.7. On or before January 31 in every year of the Agreement, the Partner Municipality will provide 
to the Coordinator the following information: 

3.7.1. The filing fees that will be payable by a Complainant in accordance with section 481(1) of 
the Municipal Government Act (MGA).    



- 3 - 

 

3.7.2. The contact information for the Assessor of the Partner Municipality. 

3.7.3. The estimated deadline for Complainants to file complaints in the Partner  Municipality. 

3.7.4. Copies of Certificates evidencing the Insurance requirements referred to in Section 11 of 
this Agreement. 

3.8. Immediately upon receipt of a complaint the Assistant Clerk shall: 

3.8.1. Forward a copy of the complaint; the tax or assessment notice that is the subject of the 
complaint and any supporting documents to the Clerk; 

3.8.2. Advise the Clerk if the complaint was received before the deadline set by the Partner 
Municipality and if the complaint filing fee was paid.     

3.9. When required, the Assistant Clerk will administer withdrawn complaints in accordance with 
legislation and the Partner Municipality’s practice. 

3.10. Any other responsibilities as identified in Schedule C. 

4. COORDINATOR RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1  The Coordinator will annually review the membership fee.  If a change is required to the 
membership fee, the Coordinator will notify the Partner Municipality of same in writing 
to the address in Section 12 of this Agreement no later than June 30th of the calendar 
year.  

4.2  The Coordinator will provide services for the Partner Municipality as identified in 
Schedule C. 

4.3 The Coordinator will, at the request of the Partner Municipality, assist during discussions 
between the Assessor and the Complainant. 

4.4 The Coordinator is responsible for ensuring that Regional Board members receive 
training in accordance with the MGA and regulations. 

4.5  The Coordinator will keep a record of the complaints filed in accordance with the MGA 
and regulations. 

4.6  The Coordinator will retain paper records such as background information, 
correspondence, appeal notices and withdrawn appeals for ten (10) years upon receipt 
of such paper records.  

4.7 The Coordinator will obtain legal services on behalf of the Regional Board when 
required. 

5. BOTH PARTIES’ RESPONSIBLITIES 

5.1. Both parties will make every reasonable effort to ensure that personal information that will be 
or is intended to be used in a complaint is both complete and accurate. 



- 4 - 

 

6. TERM 

6.1. The term of this Agreement is permanent, unless terminated by either party as follows:   

6.1.1. The Partner Municipality may withdraw from this Agreement at any time upon ten (10) 
days written notice, forfeiting the full amount of the membership paid. 

6.1.2. The Coordinator may terminate the agreement at any time upon six (6) months written 
notice to the Partner Municipality. 

7. PRIVACY 

7.1. The Coordinator is subject to the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (FOIP) 
and will protect the confidential information provided from unauthorized access or disclosure 
as permitted by law.  

7.2. The Partner Municipality shall ensure that any information of a confidential nature which it 
provides to the Coordinator is clearly marked as such. 

8. INFORMATION SHARING 

8.1. In order to process complaints for a property tax or assessment notice, the Coordinator is 
authorized to collect the following types of personal information: 

8.1.1. Roll number 

8.1.2. Legal Address 

8.1.3. Civic Address 

8.1.4. Registered Owner Name(s) 

8.1.5. Registered Owner(s) mailing address and phone number 

8.1.6. Assessed Value and Assessment Class of the property under review 

8.1.7. Name, address and phone number of Registered Agent for the Owner 

8.2. The specific personal information will be collected from the Partner Municipality. 

8.3. The collection of personal information from a source other than the individual the information 
is about is authorized by FOIP Section 34(1)(b).   

9. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

9.1. All claims, disputes, and other matters arising out of this Agreement or relating to a breach 
thereof may, upon agreement of both parties, be referred to either: 

9.1.1. Mediation:  a voluntary, no risk, non-binding process bringing the parties to a resolution. 
The mediator will be appointed upon the agreement of both parties; or 



- 5 - 

 

9.1.2. Arbitration:  a single arbitrator under the Arbitration Act, RSA 2000, A-43, and if so 
referred, the decision of the arbitrator shall be final, conclusive and binding upon the 
parties.   The arbitrator will be appointed upon the agreement of both parties.  If the 
parties are not able to agree on an arbitrator, the Alberta Court of Queen’s Bench shall 
select one. All costs associated with the appointment of the arbitrator shall be shared 
equally between the Coordinator and the Partner Municipality unless the arbitrator 
determines otherwise in accordance with the Arbitration Act. 

10. INDEMNIFICATION 

10.1. The Partner Municipality agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and 
hold harmless the Coordinator, its Officers, Directors and Employees against all damages, 
liabilities or costs arising out of the property assessment complaints or disputes related to 
property assessment complaints. 

10.2. The Partner Municipality is solely responsible for the property assessments and compliance 
with the outcome of the disputed property assessments.  

11. INSURANCE 

11.1. The Partner Municipality shall maintain, in full force and effect with insurers licensed in 
the Province of Alberta the following insurance: 

11.1.1. Professional Liability Insurance with policy limits of not less than $1,000,000 per claim 
$2,000,000 per aggregate; and 

11.1.2. General Liability insurance policy of not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence. The 
Coordinator must be named as additional insured. 

12. NOTICES 

12.1. Any notices or other correspondence required to be given to an opposite party shall be 
deemed to be adequately given if delivered to: 

To the Partner Municipality at:  

 
   
 

 
 To the Coordinator at: 

Legislative Services 

c/o The City of Red Deer 
2nd floor, 4914-48 Ave (Mail: Box 5008) 
Red Deer  AB T4N 3T3 
Phone:  (403)-342-8132  Fax:  (403)-346-6195 
 
 
 



- 6 - 

 

13. SUCCESSORS 

13.1. This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties and 
 the successors and assigns thereof. 

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

14.1. This Agreement is the whole agreement between the parties and replaces any prior 
agreement existing between the parties.   

14.2. This agreement may not be modified, changed, amended or waived except by signed 
written agreement of the parties.    

15. COUNTERPART 

15.1. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts by the parties.  All 
counterparts so executed shall have the same effect as if all parties actually had joined 
in executing one and the same document.   

 

The parties to this Agreement have affixed their corporate seals signed by the hands of their proper 
officers. 

  The City of Red Deer 

   

   

 Partner Municipality            City Clerk 



 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\09.02  Waste Collection 
Contract Extension.docx 

Date:  September 13, 2022      Agenda Item No: 9.02 

Waste Collection Contract Extension 

Recommended Motion 

 
That Council extends the Residential Waste Collection Contract with Mr. Darcy Limpert for 
the provision of residential solid waste collection for a two-year term from January 1, 2023 – 
December 31, 2024, at the original agreement price of $75,400.00 plus GST per year.   
 

Background 

 
The current residential solid waste collection agreement with Mr. Darcy Limpert expires as 
of December 31, 2022.  The current agreement provides for a weekly collection rate of 
$1,450.00 plus GST which is the annual equivalent of $75,400 plus GST.  
 
Administration had an initial discussion with the current waste collection contractor, Mr. 
Darcy Limpert to remind him that the contract expires as of the end of this year.  In this 
discussion Mr. Limpert asked if the existing agreement could be extended an additional two 
years based on the same terms and conditions as the existing contract. 
 
The Request for Proposals that was prepared for the 2019-2022 waste collection agreement 
indicated that the proposals were for a three-year term but that the term may be extended 
for an additional two-year term. 
 
The highlights of the agreement with Mr. Limpert include  

 Weekly collection rate of $1,450.00 for an annual cost of $75,400.00 plus GST. 
 Has provided the Town of Hanna residential waste collection for the previous nine 

years and has provided satisfactory service. 
 Will use a truck and dump trailer to transport waste to the transfer station.  
 Mr. Darcy Limpert will manage and operate the residential waste collection work. 

 
Administration is recommending that the Town enter into a two-year extension of the 
existing Residential Waste Collection Agreement for the following reasons: 

 Mr. Limpert has provided satisfactory residential waste collection services for the 
past nine years. 

 The weekly collection rate was extremely close to the lowest priced proposal received 
during the 2019-2022 Request for Proposal process and the contractor is agreeing to 



 

 

keep the same price even with the increase in the cost of fuel among other operating 
expenses. 

 Typically, our RFP process has not yielded large numbers of proposals with three 
received in 2019 (the most received). 

 
If Council would rather Administration conduct a Request for Proposal process for residential 
waste collection for a three-year term from 2023 – 2025 there is still time to complete that 
process prior to the end of the expiration of the existing residential waste collection 
agreement.  
 

Communications 

 
Report highlights may be communicated through the Town of Hanna social media program. 
 

Financial Implications 

 

 
Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
N/A 
 

Attachments 

 
1. Residential Waste Collection Agreement between the Town of Hanna and Mr. 

Darcy Limpert. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 

Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 

 

Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 























 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\09.03  Hanna Seniors 
Amenity Zone Project Scope Amendment.docx 

Date:  September 13, 2022      Agenda Item No: 9.03 

Hanna Seniors Amenity Zone Project Scope Amendment 

Recommended Motion 

 
That Council amends the tender award for the Town of Hanna Seniors Amenity Zone Project 
to Urban Life Solutions Ltd by removing the electrical conduit installation for future lighting 
alongside Palliser Trail from the project scope, which reduces the tender from $419,353.77 
plus GST to $377,785.90 plus GST: and further that contingency for the project be increased 
by $41,567.87. 
 

Background 

 
Council, at the August 9, 2022 Regular Council Meeting approved the following Resolution, 
“That Council awards the tender for the Town of Hanna Seniors Amenity Zone Project to 
Urban Life Solutions Ltd in the amount of $419,353.77 plus GST with the funds derived from 
the Canada Community Revitalization Fund and Town of Hanna surplus and reserves as 
approved in the 2022 Capital Budget; subject to confirmation of the change in project scope 
from Western Economic Diversification. 
 
Administration has received notice from Western Economic Diversification that they have 
approved the change in project scope and on September 1, 2022 Administration met with 
representatives of Urban Life Solutions (ULS) on site to review the project and go over the 
construction details.  One of the topics that arose during this meeting was the finished look 
of the conduit and wiring that was planned to being trenched in and installed as part of this 
project and for future pedestrian lighting of the pathway.  ULS indicated that it would be 
relatively easy for this installation of conduit and wiring at a future date when and if Council 
decided to install pedestrian lights.  Administration requested a revised tender with the 
exclusion of the electrical conduit installation and ULS has provided a revised price of 
$377,785.90 which is a reduction of $41,567.87 from the project. 
 
Administration is recommending that Council approve this change in scope and remove the 
electrical conduit installation from the project at this time for the following reasons: 

 The installation of the electrical conduit at this time does not provide any significant 
savings when compared to completing the installation at a later time, presumably 
when the Town makes a decision to install pedestrian lights on this pathway. 



 

 

 Allows the Town to review the pedestrian lighting needs and requirements once the 
pathway is installed and in operation which may result in a reduction and or change 
in style of pedestrian lights to be installed. 

 Provides a larger contingency for the project with a number of unknown costs that 
may be incurred as a result of the Town assuming more responsibility for the 
remediation and some of the installations (i.e. trees, benches, bike racks, etc.). 

 
The original approved Senior Amenity Zone Project Budget: 
 
Revenue: Canada Community Revitalization Fund  $  369,435.00 

 Town of Hanna Accumulated Surplus & Reserves $  123,145.00 
  Total Revenue $  492,580.00 
 
Expenditures: Consulting Services (Design & Tender) $   34,220.00 
  Tender Award $  419,353.77 
  Contingency $   39,006.23 
  Total Expenditures $  492,580.00 

 
 

The amended Senior Amenity Zone Project Budget: 
 
Revenue: Canada Community Revitalization Fund  $  369,435.00 

 Town of Hanna Accumulated Surplus & Reserves $  123,145.00 
  Total Revenue $  492,580.00 
 
Expenditures: Consulting Services (Design & Tender) $   34,220.00 
  Tender Award $  377,785.90 
  Contingency $   80,574.10 
  Total Expenditures $  492,580.00 

 
The work to be completed on this project is identified below with the removal of the trench, 
supply power distribution equipment, junction boxes and conduit for future lighting 
 
Hector King-Hunter Pioneer Park pathway  

 Removal of existing concrete pathway, hauling offsite and tipping fees included. 
 Complete pathway sub grade preparation including excavation to a depth of 225 mm 
 Construct a 2-metre-wide pathway with 150mm of compacted granular base and 150 

mm of asphalt 



 

 

 The supply of 5 bike racks – Town to install 
 Supply and placement of landscape boulders to identify the transition of the stream 

crossing 
 Provide and install two nilex multi-flow horizontal drains under the asphalt pathway 

including fill material (alternative to the wooden bridges) 
 The Town would be responsible for the rehabilitation of the sod areas and any 

electrical and irrigation repairs that occur as a result of the work being completed. 
 
Palliser Trail pathway 

 Complete pathway sub grade preparation including the excavation to a depth of 225 
mm 

 Construct a 2.5-metre-wide pathway with 150mm of compacted granular base and 
150 mm of asphalt 

 The supply of 10 50mm calibre Brandon Elm trees – Town to install 
 The supply of 4 courtyard series benches  
 Supply and install 10 bollards to be surface mounted on the asphalt pathway at road 

crossings 
 

Communications 

 
Report highlights may be communicated through the Town of Hanna social media program. 
 

Financial Implications 

 

 
Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
N/A 
 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: $377,785.90 

Budget Available:  Budget Available: $492,580 

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds: 
CCRF Grant - $369,435 
Town of Hanna - $123,145 



 

 

Attachments 

 
1. Revised Tender from Urban Life Solutions  

 
Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



818 StudioClient Name:

Estimate ID: EST3350406

9/2/2022 12:00:00 PMDate:

Revised Final CopyVersion #:

ULS Maintenance & Landscaping Inc.

Project Name: Hanna Senior Amenity Project

Proposal

Billing Address Site Address

1812 14A Street Southwest Calgary, Alberta T2T 3W6

Ryan RedmondEstimator Name:

Client Email: jen@818studio.com

Client Phone: 4032448188

$21,080.04Palliser 1.0 - Mobilization

$13,847.25Palliser 2.0 - Site Security

$12,000.00Palliser 3.0 - Site Survey

$3,582.56Palliser Trail - 4.0 - Tree Protection

$39,123.60Palliser 6.1 - Sub Grade Prep for Pathway

$8,610.87Palliser 7.1 - Driveway Apron

$106,567.54Palliser 7.2 - Asphalt Pathway

$4,427.16Palliser 8.1 - Brandon Elm (Supply Only)

www.ulslandscaping.comp. (403) 235-5353

f. (403) 235-5530

235120 Ryan Road

email: info@ulslandscaping.comRockyView, Alberta T1X 0K3

Contractor Initials: Customer Initials:

EST3350406

Pg 1 of 3



$9,344.69Palliser 9.1 - Bench (Supply Only)

$13,439.12Palliser 9.3 - Pathway Bollard

$21,777.12HKHP 1.0- mobilization

$11,936.60HKHP 2.0 - Site Security

$8,000.00HKHP 3.0 - Site Surveys

$3,714.72HKHP - 4.0 Tree Protection

$14,841.57HKHP - 5.1 Demolition

$17,152.41HKHP - 6.1 - Pathway Subgrade Prep.

$50,823.41HKHP - 7.1 - Asphalt Pathway

$3,638.01HKHP 9.2 - Bike Racks (Supply Only)

$2,125.44HKHP - 9.3 - Landscape Boulders

$11,753.79HKHP 10.1 - Multi Flow Drain

$377,785.90Subtotal

$18,889.30Taxes

$396,675.20Estimate Total

www.ulslandscaping.comp. (403) 235-5353

f. (403) 235-5530

235120 Ryan Road

email: info@ulslandscaping.comRockyView, Alberta T1X 0K3

Contractor Initials: Customer Initials:

EST3350406

Pg 2 of 3



Estimate authorized by: Estimate approved by:

Company Representative Customer Representative

Signature Date: Signature Date:

PLEASE NOTE:

This estimate is inclusive of the scope of work outlined above only.

Pricing is firm for 30 days and is subject to change thereafter.

Unforeseen circumstances may result in additional challenges or opportunities
beyond the original scope of the project. Any related price changes will be
presented to the client in writing for approval prior to commencement of any
additional work.

A signed proposal or contract accompanied with a 15% deposit will be required to
proceed with any project.

At the end of each calendar month the client shall receive a progress bill which is
due upon receipt this invoice will accurately include all materials and labour input
into the clients project at the date of invoice.

Full payment of any outstanding balance is due upon receipt of final invoice.

We appreciate the opportunity for your business.

www.ulslandscaping.comp. (403) 235-5353

f. (403) 235-5530

235120 Ryan Road

email: info@ulslandscaping.comRockyView, Alberta T1X 0K3

Contractor Initials: Customer Initials:

EST3350406

Pg 3 of 3



 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\09.04  ATCO Electric 
Franchise Fee.docx 

Date:  September 13, 2022      Agenda Item No: 9.04 

ATCO Electric Franchise Fee 

Recommended Motion 

 
That Council accepts the ATCO Electric Franchise Fee Report for information and direct 
Administration to inform ATCO Electric that the Town of Hanna will not be requesting an 
increase to the Franchise Fee for 2023 from the current rate of 7.5%.  
 

Background 

 
The Municipal Government Act permits a municipality to grant a franchise for the supply of 
utilities. The Town of Hanna has held an Electric Distribution System Franchise Agreement 
(Agreement) with ATCO Electric for several decades.  An Electric Distribution System 
Franchise Agreement grants an exclusive franchise to a company, in this case ATCO Electric 
Ltd. to provide Electric Distribution Service within a Municipal Service Area on the agreed to 
terms and conditions contained in the Agreement. An Electric Distribution System means 
any facilities which are used to provide electric distribution service within the municipal 
service area, and without limiting the generality of the foregoing shall include street lighting 
where applicable, poles, fixtures, luminaires, guys, hardware, insulators, wires, conductors, 
cables, ducts, meters, transformers, fences, vaults, and connection pedestals, excluding any 
transmission facilities as defined by the Electric Utilities Act.    
 
The latest Franchise Agreement was entered into in 2013 for a term of ten years. The 
Agreement calls for an initial period of 10 years with an option for two five-year extensions 
for a potential maximum term of 20 years. At the time of the signing of the Agreement in 
2013 the Franchise Fee established for delivery revenues was increased from 3.5% to 5.00%. 
In 2018 Council went through the process to have that Franchise fee increased to 7.5%.  The 
maximum % allowable for a municipality to charge is 20%.  
 
ATCO sent a letter to the Town of Hanna dated, February 9, 2022, providing notice of its 
intention to extend the agreement in accordance with Section 3 of the agreement, which 
upon approval of the Town of Hanna will become effective on June 12, 2023 for a five-year 
term. Council approved the extension of this agreement for a further five-year period at the 
May 10, 2022 Council Meeting. 
 
 



 

 

The electricity franchise fees are charged by the Town to ATCO Electric for the exclusive right 
to provide electricity services within the municipality as well as for access to Town lands to 
construct, maintain and operate related assets.   Franchise fees are intended to compensate 
the Town for direct costs and for restrictions on planning and development relating to utility 
rights of way as well as related inherent risks.  Through the fees, the utility provider is 
charged an appropriate amount for the use of the land and the exclusive rights to deliver 
those utility services within the Town.  The utility provider then passes these costs to each 
consumer (not necessarily property owners but electricity customers) as a separate charge 
on the electricity bills.   ATCO Electric collects the revenue and then pays it to the Town. These 
funds are used to reduce the total amount required to be raised through property taxes.  
 
Pursuant to Section 5 (b) of the Franchise Agreement with ATCO Electric Ltd., the Town has 
the ability to review and change the franchise fee annually.  If there is to be a change in the 
franchise fee the Town must provide notice in writing of that change to residents in the local 
newspaper with the greatest circulation, including the effect of the proposed change for the 
average residential customer.  ATCO Electric recommends this fee change be published prior 
to October 10, 2022.     
 
The franchise fee charged in municipalities in our region as of April 1, 2002 are as follows: 
 
 Town of Drumheller  9%  Village of Forestburg 11% 
 Town of Stettler  11.1% Village of Consort  7% 
 Village of Veteran  6%  Town of Oyen  8% 
 Town of Three Hills  8% Village of Delia  5% 
 Town of Castor  7%  Town of Coronation  3.75% 
 Village of Youngstown  1.25%  
  
Based on ATCO Electric’s actual distribution revenue for the calendar year 2021 the Town of 
Hanna franchise fee paid at 7.5% to the Town of Hanna was $194,246.70.  The estimated 
franchise fee payable in 2022 is $231,918.98. ATCO estimates for franchise fee revenue for 
the Town of Hanna in 2023 with the franchise fee remaining at 7.5% is $223,801.80.  
 
The original plan was to review the franchise fee for both the natural gas and electric utilities 
every five years.  With the last increase of the electric franchise fee taking effect as of January 
1, 2018 the year 2023 would be the next review and potential increase to the franchise fee. 
If the franchise fee was increased to 10.0% it is estimated this would bring in an increase of 
$74,600.60 for a total of $298,402.40. It is estimated that for every one percent (1%) increase 
in franchise fees it would result in an additional $29,840.24 in revenue to the Town of Hanna. 
 



 

 

Administration is recommending that with the recent significant increases in the electrical 
utilities both transmission/distribution and the retail prices charged to the consumers and 
as a result of these increases the Town receiving additional revenues than anticipated that 
the franchise fee be left at 7.5% for the 2023 year. 
 
Franchise fee increases have less of an impact than a tax increase as it is collected from all 
properties rather than just taxable properties, resulting in greater equity for all property 
owners.   Unlike municipal property taxes there are no exemptions or exempted properties.   
 

Communications 

 
Report highlights may be communicated through the Town of Hanna social media program. 
 

Financial Implications 

 

 
Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
1. Alberta Municipal Government Act – Section 45 (1 – 5). 
 

Attachments 

 
1. ATCO Electric – Hanna 2023 Distribution Revenue Forecast – 2023 Franchise Fee 

Letter  
2. ATCO Electric – Rider A Municipal Assessment 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 

Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 

 

Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



 

ATCO Ltd. & Canadian Utilities Limited  |  ATCO.com  |  5302 Forand St SW Calgary AB Canada T3E 8B4 

August 23, 2022 

 

Town of Hanna 

Attn: Kim Neill 

Box 430 

Hanna AB 

T0J 1P0  

 

Re: Distribution Revenue Forecast for 2023 Franchise Fee  

 

Dear Kim Neill, 

 

Your Franchise Agreement allows for an annual change to the franchise fee percentage. However, specific 

procedures must be followed before the fee can be changed and take effect. This letter is intended to 

provide you with an overview of the franchise fee change procedure as follows:  

1. Your Municipality must decide if a change is required and what the new fee percentage should be. 
ATCO Electric will provide revenue estimates to help you with this (if the new fee is greater than the 
pre-approved cap in your franchise, a different process is required). 

2. In accordance with the Alberta Utilities Commission (AUC) Decision approving your Franchise 
Agreement, you must publish a public notice of the proposed change in the local newspaper with the 
greatest circulation. This notice must include the effect of the proposed change for the average 
residential customer. ATCO Electric can estimate the new charges and the impact on an average 
customer bill. We recommend that fee change notices be published before October 10, 2022.  

3. Residents must have at least 14 days from the publication of the notice to make their concerns 
known to the Municipality and the Municipality is to respond to these concerns. 

4. The Municipality will advise ATCO Electric by letter the new desired fee percentage. This letter must 
include a copy of the public notice with publication details (date and name of newspaper), and any 
comments the Municipality wants to include on the public response.  

5. ATCO Electric will apply to the AUC to change the rate. Copies of the Municipality’s letter and public 
notice will be included with the application. ATCO Electric must receive the municipality’s request 
(complete with a copy of the notice) by November 14, 2022 in order to obtain AUC approval and 
commence billing the new fee effective January 1, 2023.  

6. The AUC must approve the change to ATCO Electric’s rates. Provided the Commission is satisfied that 
proper notice was given they do not receive any objections or concerns from the public, the approval 
is anticipated to be issued quickly. 

7. Once the rate change is approved, ATCO Electric will commence charging and remittance of the new 
fee.  

 



 

 
 
 

 ATCO & Canadian Utilities Limited  |  ATCO.com  |  5302 Forand St SW Calgary AB Canada T3E 8B4 
 

The following information will help you decide the appropriate fee percentage for your community.  

Current Fee 

Percentage 
Current Fee Cap 

Distribution 

Revenue Previous 

calendar year 

Estimated 2022 

Distribution 

Revenue 

Estimated 2023 

Distribution 

Revenue 

7.5% of 

distribution 

revenue 

20% $2,589,956 

$3,092,253 

Estimated on first 

6 months of data 

$2,984,024 

Amortized 

(inflation index) 

To estimate the franchise fee amount, multiply the Estimated Distribution Revenue by the fee percentage. 

When calculating your revenue requirements please remember that this fee is paid in addition to the 

linear taxes on the distribution system.  

Estimated revenues are calculated based on best available information and are subject to change due to 

AUC final approved tariffs, Alberta Electric System Operator (AESO) flow-thru charges or changes in load 

growth. 

We are available to discuss this with you in more detail if required. If you have any questions or comments, 

please call me at 403-741-4792. 

 

Yours truly, 

 

Tracy Volker 
Customer Sales Representative  
ATCO Electric 
403-741-4792 
Tracy.Volker@atco.com 
 

 



 

Rider A Municipal Assessment 

 

ATCO Electric Rider A – Municipal Assessment 
Approved in AUC Disposition 27204-D01-2022 (Dated: March 2, 2022) 
 

Sheet 1 of 2 
Effective:  2022 04 01 

Supersedes: 2022 02 01 
 

The Company's Terms and Conditions for Electric Distribution Service apply to all retailers and customers provided with System 

and/or Distribution Access Service by the Company. The Terms and Conditions are available on the website www.atco.com. 

 

 

RIDER A:  

MUNICIPAL TAX AND FRANCHISE FEE ASSESSMENT 

 

(1) Overview 

Rider A is applicable to Customers residing in municipalities which receive: (i) a property tax under the 

Municipal Government Act, or (ii) receive payment for specific costs which are not generally incurred by 

the Company.   

The following may be exempt from the surcharge: 

(a) Farm customers (Price Schedules D51, D52 and D56) 

(b) Irrigation customers (Price Schedule D25 and D26)  

(c) Customers within First Nation Reservations not listed 

(d) Special Facilities Charge (Rider E) customers 

 

This Rider comprises two components which are summed: (i) a tax component and (ii) a fee component. 

The tax component of Rider A is the estimated percentage of base revenue required to provide for the tax 

payable or specific cost incurred each year. To the extent that this percentage may be more or less than 

that required to pay the tax or specific cost, this component of the Rider will be adjusted on an annual 

basis or as needed to manage shortfalls or surpluses. 

The franchise fee component of this Rider is a flat percentage payable to the franchised municipality.  

This percentage is set in accordance with the franchise agreement between the Municipal Authority and 

the Company. 

The total percentage is the addition of the tax component and fee component and is shown by Municipal 

Authority in Table 1. 

 

(2) Calculation 

Rider A is calculated for each Taxation Authority as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

Forecast Base Revenuen 
 

Shortfall/Surplusn-1 + Forecast Property Taxn 

Where: 
        n = Current Year 

+ Franchise Feen 

 

Rider An = 

https://www.atco.com/en-ca/for-home/electricity/rates-billing/regulatory.html


 

Rider A Municipal Assessment 

 

ATCO Electric Rider A – Municipal Assessment 
Approved in AUC Disposition 27204-D01-2022 (Dated: March 2, 2022) 
 

Sheet 2 of 2 
Effective:  2022 04 01 

Supersedes: 2022 02 01 
 

The Company's Terms and Conditions for Electric Distribution Service apply to all retailers and customers provided with System 

and/or Distribution Access Service by the Company. The Terms and Conditions are available on the website www.atco.com. 

 

[1] [2] [3] [4] [1] [2] [3] [4]
TABLE 1: TOTAL RIDER A = [1] +[2] = [1] +[2]

Municipal Authority
(Price Area)

Municipal Tax 
from Table 2

(%)

Franchise Fee
(%)

Franchise Fee 
Effective Date

(yy/mm/dd)

Rider A
Total
(%)

Municipal Authority
(Price Area)

Municipal Tax 
from Table 2

(%)

Franchise Fee
(%)

Franchise Fee 
Effective Date

(yy/mm/dd)

Rider A
Total
(%)

ACADIA (M034) 4.35 0.00 4.35 MANNING (T556) 1.51 6.00 12/01/01 7.51
ALLIANCE (V017) 1.65 6.00 05/01/01 7.65 MANNVILLE (V559) 2.38 9.00 20/01/01 11.38
ALLISON BAY (B219) -0.20 0.00 -0.20 MARWAYNE (V562) 1.52 6.00 15/06/01 7.52
ANDREW (V024) 1.38 7.00 20/01/01 8.38 MCLENNAN (T574) 2.18 3.75 22/01/01 5.93
BEAVERLODGE (T051) 1.42 7.00 20/01/01 8.42 MINBURN (V589) 2.90 1.00 18/01/01 3.90
BERWYN (V063) 3.44 6.00 19/01/01 9.44 MORRIN (V598) 1.72 3.50 12/01/01 5.22
BIG VALLEY (V069) 1.01 2.00 16/01/01 3.01 MUNDARE (T604) 1.29 6.00 20/04/01 7.29
BIGSTONE (B110) 1.36 0.00 1.36 MUNSON (V607) 3.37 1.00 10/07/01 4.37
BONNYVILLE BEACH S.V. (S096) 0.68 0.00 0.68 MYRNAM (V610) 2.93 6.00 21/02/01 8.93
BONNYVILLE, TOWN OF (T093) 1.04 6.80 03/01/01 7.84 NAMPA (V619) 1.22 2.00 16/01/01 3.22
BOTHA (V099) 1.62 0.00 20/01/01 1.62 NORTHERN LIGHT (M022) 1.15 0.00 1.15
BUSHE RIVER I.R. 207 (B726) 0.44 0.00 0.44 NORTHERN SUNRISE COUNTY (M131) 0.66 0.00 0.66
CAMROSE (C022) 2.16 0.00 2.16 OPPORTUNITY (M017) 1.04 0.00 1.04
CARBON (V129) 1.32 8.00 22/01/01 9.32 OYEN (T648) 1.05 8.00 22/01/01 9.05
CASTOR (T147) 1.54 7.00 20/01/01 8.54 PADDLE PRAIRIE (N221) 2.19 0.00 2.19
CEREAL (V153) -0.41 0.00 21/08/01 -0.41 PAINTEARTH (C018) 1.17 0.00 1.17
CLEAR HILLS (M021) 1.65 0.00 1.65 PARADISE VALLEY (V654) 1.27 10.00 22/01/01 11.27
COLD LAKE (T189) 1.15 4.25 03/01/01 5.40 PEACE (M135) 0.81 0.00 0.81
CONSORT (V195) 2.17 7.00 21/01/01 9.17 PEACE RIVER (T657) 1.82 11.50 22/02/01 13.32
CORONATION (T198) 1.11 3.75 04/01/01 4.86 PEAVINE (N172) 0.23 0.00 0.23
DELBURNE (V231) 1.64 1.50 08/01/01 3.14 PELICAN NARROWS S.V. (S659) 0.32 0.00 0.32
DELIA (V234) 2.42 5.00 11/01/01 7.42 RAINBOW LAKE (T690) 1.89 13.00 15/01/01 14.89
DERWENT (V237) 3.24 4.00 19/06/01 7.24 RED DEER (C023) 1.92 0.00 1.92
DEWBERRY (V246) 1.94 8.00 17/01/01 9.94 ROCHON SANDS S.V. (S708) 1.14 0.00 1.14
DOGHEAD I.R. (B218) -0.29 0.00 -0.29 ROSALIND (V717) 2.01 0.50 13/04/09 2.51
DONALDA (V252) 2.21 11.00 22/01/01 13.21 RYCROFT (V729) 1.85 7.00 20/04/01 8.85
DONNELLY (V255) 1.48 2.25 10/01/01 3.73 SADDLE HILLS (M020) 0.49 0.00 0.49
DRIFTPILE RIVER FIRST NATION I.R. 150 (B220) 0.00 0.00 0.00 SADDLE LAKE I.R. (B638) 1.12 0.00 1.12
DRUMHELLER (K025) 1.27 9.00 10.27 SEXSMITH (T754) 1.55 5.50 12/01/01 7.05
EAST PRAIRIE (N174) 2.13 0.00 2.13 SLAVE LAKE (T766) 1.13 10.40 20/03/01 11.53
ELIZABETH (N187) 15.82 0.00 15.82 SMOKY LAKE (T769) 1.88 7.00 19/04/01 8.88
ELK POINT (T291) 1.89 5.00 20/01/01 6.89 SMOKY RIVER (M130) 1.82 0.00 1.82
ELNORA (V294) 1.37 1.50 20/01/01 2.87 SPECIAL AREAS (A001) 0.46 0.00 0.46
EMPRESS (V297) 2.45 2.00 07/01/01 4.45 SPIRIT RIVER (M133) 0.86 0.00 0.86
FAIRVIEW (M136) 2.64 0.00 2.64 SPIRIT RIVER, TOWN OF (T778) 1.63 5.50 12/02/01 7.13
FAIRVIEW (T309) 1.36 7.50 13/01/01 8.86 ST. PAUL, COUNTY OF (C019) 0.82 0.00 0.82
FALHER (T315) 1.46 7.00 20/01/01 8.46 ST. PAUL, TOWN OF (T790) 1.48 7.00 03/01/01 8.48
FISHING LAKE (N188) 6.86 0.00 6.86 STARLAND (M047) 1.10 0.00 1.10
FLAGSTAFF (C029) 1.43 0.00 1.43 STETTLER, COUNTY OF (C006) 1.64 0.00 1.64
FORESTBURG (V324) 2.04 11.00 21/01/01 13.04 STETTLER, TOWN OF (T805) 0.88 11.10 18/01/01 11.98
FORT MCMURRAY (K032) 0.58 10.00 14/01/01 10.58 STURGEON LAKE I.R. 154 (B770) 0.85 0.00 0.85
FOX CREEK (T342) 1.26 6.50 20/01/01 7.76 SUCKER CREEK FIRST NATION 150A (B792) 0.89 0.00 0.89
FT. MACKAY SETTLEMENT #467 (B982) 0.90 0.00 0.90 SWAN HILLS TOWN (T830) 2.90 10.00 21/01/01 12.90
FT. McMURRAY BAND (B352) 0.57 0.00 0.57 THREE HILLS (T845) 1.07 8.00 22/01/01 9.07
GADSBY (V351) -0.84 0.00 21/08/01 -0.84 TROCHU (T857) 1.66 5.00 16/01/01 6.66
GALAHAD (V354) 1.81 9.00 22/01/01 10.81 TWO HILLS COUNTY (C021) 5.11 0.00 5.11
GIFT LAKE METIS SETT (N173) 3.92 0.00 3.92 TWO HILLS, TOWN OF (T863) 2.34 8.50 21/01/01 10.84
GIROUXVILLE (V366) 1.86 6.00 21/01/01 7.86 UPPER HAY LAKE I.R. 212 (B728) 0.27 0.00 0.27
GLENDON (V372) 2.04 1.50 03/01/01 3.54 VALLEYVIEW (T866) 1.17 5.25 06/01/01 6.42
GRANDE CACHE (T393) 1.08 0.00 21/01/01 1.08 VEGREVILLE (T875) 1.75 10.00 20/01/01 11.75
GRANDE PRAIRIE, COUNTY OF (C001) 0.58 0.00 0.58 VERMILION (T878) 1.13 8.00 21/01/01 9.13
GRANDE PRAIRIE, CITY OF (K035) 1.60 10.00 19/02/01 11.60 VETERAN (V881) 2.72 6.00 17/01/01 8.72
GRIMSHAW (T405) 1.08 6.00 10/07/01 7.08 VILNA (V887) 3.54 20.00 12/01/01 23.54
HALKIRK (V414) 1.47 5.00 21/01/01 6.47 WASKATENAU (V908) 2.30 1.00 19/01/01 3.30
HANNA (T417) 1.35 7.50 18/01/01 8.85 WEMBLEY (T911) 1.69 6.00 11/03/01 7.69
HAY LAKE I.R. 209 (B727) 1.39 0.00 1.39 WHEATLAND (C016) 0.52 0.00 0.52
HEISLER (V429) 4.74 8.00 21/01/01 12.74 WHITE SANDS S.V. (S922) 0.79 0.00 0.79
HIGH LEVEL (T435) 0.54 12.10 20/01/01 12.64 WHITEFISH I.R. 155 (B924) 1.10 0.00 1.10
HIGH PRAIRIE (T438) 1.24 9.00 22/01/01 10.24 WILLINGDON (V926) 1.93 2.00 08/01/01 3.93
HINES CREEK (V447) 2.67 2.75 19/01/01 5.42 WOOD BUFFALO (M018) 0.09 0.00 0.09
HORSESHOE BAY S.V. (S458) 0.52 0.00 0.52 WOOD BUFFALO PARK (L024) 0.61 0.00 0.61
HYTHE (V468) 1.55 10.00 20/01/01 11.55 YOUNGSTOWN (V932) 1.35 1.25 12/01/01 2.60
INNISFREE (V474) 4.22 5.00 17/01/01 9.22 BIG LAKE & KINUSO (M125, V505) 1.17 0.00 1.17
JASPER (R004) 0.69 8.00 22/01/01 8.69 BIRCH HILLS & WANHAM (M019, V896) 1.86 0.00 1.86
KITSCOTY (V508) 1.76 6.00 13/01/01 7.76 BONNYVILLE & ANNEXED AREA (M087, M088) 0.40 0.00 0.40
LAKELAND (C089) 0.33 0.00 0.33 JASPER (PARK & OUTSIDE TOWN) (L012, R003) 0.12 6.00 13/08/01 6.12
LAMONT (C030) 1.69 0.00 1.69 KNEEHILL & TORRINGTON (M048, V854) 1.02 0.00 1.02
LESSER SLAVE RIVER (M124) 0.35 0.00 0.35 LLOYDMINSTER (AB45, SK45) 0.93 11.00 15/01/01 11.93
LINDEN (V535) 2.06 6.00 15/01/01 8.06 MINBURN & LAVOY (C027, V523) 0.65 0.00 0.65
LOON RIVER CREE (B473) 1.89 0.00 1.89 SMOKY LAKE & WARSPITE (C013, V905) 1.08 0.00 1.08
M.D. of GREENVIEW (M016) 0.23 0.00 0.23 THORHILD & RADWAY (V687, C007) 5.56 0.00 5.56
MACKENZIE (M023) 1.05 0.00 1.05 VERMILLION RIVER (AB & SK) (C024, SK24) 1.33 0.00 1.33

 

https://www.atco.com/en-ca/for-home/electricity/rates-billing/regulatory.html


 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\09.05 Returning Officer's 
Report.docx 

Date: September 13, 2022      Agenda Item No: 09.05 

Returning Officer’s Report 

Recommended Motion 

 
That Council accepts for information, the Returning Officer’s Report dated September 13, 
2022 regarding the results of the 2022 Municipal By-Election as submitted by Winona 
Gutsche.  
 

Background 

 
The official result of the 2022 Municipal By-Election is that Mr. Vernon Donald Thuroo was 
elected to the office of councillor for the Town of Hanna by acclamation on August 29, 2022. 
 
At the Regular Council meeting held July 12, 2022 a motion was passed directing that a by-
election be held to fill the vacancy on Council as a result of the death of Councillor Gerald 
Campion.     
 
Election day was set for September 26, 2022 with Nomination Day ending at 12:00 noon on 
August 29, 2022.   The election was advertised as required and effective August 29, 2022 only 
one candidate had submitted nomination papers for councillor.   
 
Official Election Results were submitted to Alberta Municipal Affairs as required.   
 

Communications 

 
N/A 
 

Financial Implications 

 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 

Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 

 

 
Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
1. Local Authorities Election Act   

 
Attachments 

 
N/A  

 
Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 



 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\09.06  2022 Taxation Report 
.docx 

Date: September 13, 2022      Agenda Item No: 09.06 

2022 Taxation Report 

Recommended Motion 

 
That Council accept the 2022 Taxation Report for Information. 
 

Background 

 
In 2020 Council had concerns regarding the ability of property owners to pay their taxes due 
to Covid 19 implications.  In recognition of that Council reduced the penalties charged by 
50% (from 8% - 4% on September 1st and October 1st and from 10% - 5% on January 1st).  The 
penalty dates and rates remain the same.  
 
Tax payment deadline was August 31, 2022, and as of that date the 2022 taxes outstanding 
were $718,347.86, versus the outstanding taxes on August 31, 2021, of $807,790.83.   
 
Penalties in the amount of $8,513.74 were applied on September 1st, 2022 (4% of current 
levy balance). 
 
Please note that of the outstanding taxes there will be a further payment of taxes from those 
property owners on the monthly pre-authorized payment plan in the amount of $431,344.00 
by the end of December, leaving an estimated amount of outstanding taxes at year-end of 
$287,003.86. Payments have been received since the deadline, and it is anticipated payments 
will continue in September to avoid the second penalty on October 1st. In comparison 
December 31st 2021 the outstanding taxes were $106,742.30 and December 31st 2020 the 
outstanding taxes were $329,303.08.   
 
If homeowners purchased property between May 31st and August 31st, 2022, and did not 
receive a Property Tax Notice, they may be eligible to be reimbursed by the province, for the 
penalty charged. This program has been introduced due to the current processing delays at 
Alberta Land Titles.  
 
Letters will be sent to property owners advising of the balance owing in September and will 
note the above information from the province along with the website, phone number and 
email address.   
 



 

 

Communications 

 
N/A 

 
Financial Implications 

 

 
Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
 

Attachments 

 
N/A  

 
Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 

Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\10.01 Bylaw 1026-2022 - 
Central Alberta Assessment Review Board Bylaw.docx 

Date:  September 13, 2022      Agenda Item No: 10.01 

Bylaw 1026-2022 - Central Alberta Regional Assessment 

Review Board Bylaw 

Recommended Motion 

 
That Council give first reading to Bylaw 1026-2022, the Central Alberta Regional Assessment 
Review Board bylaw.  
 
That Council give second reading to Bylaw 1026-2022, the Central Alberta Regional 
Assessment Review Board bylaw.  
 
That Council provide unanimous consent for third reading of Bylaw 1026-2022, the Central 
Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board bylaw at this meeting.  
 
That Council give third and final reading to Bylaw 1026-2022, the Central Alberta Regional 
Assessment Review Board bylaw. 
 

Background 

 
As part of the Government of Alberta Municipal Accountability Program (MAP) it was 
identified that the Town of Hanna was not meeting the requirement to establish an 
Assessment Review Board and did not have any members appointed to an intermunicipal 
assessment review board, nor does the Town of Hanna have a Clerk appointed.   
 
Bill 23, the Municipal Government Amendment Act, 2009, made amendments to restructure 
assessment review boards and clarify their roles and responsibilities, enhance training for 
board members and administrators, increase access to information for citizens and ensure 
province-wide consistency, accountability and transparency.  The amendments: 

 Better defined the composition, roles and jurisdiction of the boards that hear 
assessment complaints; 

 Enhanced the training and qualification requirements of board members and board 
administrators; 

 Improved access to information for taxpayers and mandated disclosure between 
parties to a complaint; 

 Outlined the timelines for the steps in the complaint process; and  



 

 

 Set out consequences for either party if the disclosure and timeline requirements are 
not met.  

 
Bill 23 created the requirement to have a Local Assessment Review Board (LARB) to hear 
matters that are shown on an assessment notice for residential property with 3 or fewer 
dwelling units, farmland, or a tax notice other than a property tax notice and a Composite 
Assessment Review Board (CARB) to hear all other matters. Decision requirements of both 
the Local Assessment Review Board and the Composite Assessment Review Board are 
specifically set out in the legislation.  The Composite Assessment Review Board can award 
COSTS in certain circumstances.  Appeals of decisions of both boards are now only to the 
Alberta Court of Queen's Bench.  There is no longer a right to appeal to the Municipal 
Government Board.   
 
To comply with the requirements of Bill 23, many municipalities have joined the Central 
Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board which is coordinated by the City of Red Deer. 
Administration reached out to the City of Red Deer to see if they had capacity to add the 
Town of Hanna as a partner municipality and they have indicated there is capacity.  
 
In order to join, the Town of Hanna is required to enter into an Agreement with the City of 
Red Deer and pass a Bylaw to establish a Joint Assessment Review Board that will enable 
municipalities to provide a mechanism for citizens to appeal their property tax assessment 
and tax notices. 
 
Bylaw 1026-2022 has been prepared as required under the Agreement for Council’s review 
and adoption.    
 

Communications 

 
Report highlights may be communicated through the Town of Hanna social media program. 
 

Financial Implications 

 

 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 

Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 

 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
N/A 
 

Attachments 

 
1. Bylaw 1026 – 2022 the Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board bylaw. 
 

Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



TOWN OF HANNA 
PROVINCE OF ALBERTA 
BY-LAW NO. 1026-2022 

 
 
 A BYLAW OF THE TOWN OF HANNA IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA TO 
ESTABLISH A JOINT ASSESSMENT REVIEW BOARD.  
 
 WHEREAS, Section 455 of the Municipal Government Act, permits two or more 
Councils to jointly establish assessment review boards to have jurisdiction in their 
respective municipalities;  
 
The City of Red Deer and the Partner Municipalities jointly wish to establish the Central 
Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board to exercise the functions of a Local 
Assessment Review Board (LARB) and the functions of a Composite Assessment Review 
Board (CARB) under the provisions of the Municipal Government Act in respect of 
assessment complaints made by their respective taxpayers of a Partner Municipality; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE under the authority of the Municipal Government Act, The Council 
of the Town of Hanna, in the Province of Alberta, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 

1. BYLAW TITLE 
 

1.1. This Bylaw shall be known as the “Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review 
Board Bylaw”. 

 
 
2. PURPOSE 

 
2.1. The purpose of this bylaw is to establish a joint assessment review board that will 

enable municipalities to provide a mechanism for citizens to appeal their property 
assessment and tax notices. 

 
 

3 DEFINITIONS 
 

3.1 Except as otherwise provided herein, words in this Bylaw shall have the meanings 
prescribed in section 453 of the Municipal Government Act (MGA). 

 
3.2 In this bylaw the following terms shall have the meanings shown: 
 

(a) “Board” means the Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board; 
 
(b) “Composite Assessment Review Board” or "CARB” means the Composite 

Assessment Review Board established in accordance with the MGA hears 
complaints on assessment notices for property other than the property 
described in section 3(2)(d) of this bylaw and section 460.1 of the MGA; 

 
(c) “Designated Officer of the Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review 

Board (Designated Officer)” means the person appointed to carry out the 
duties and functions of the clerk of the assessment review boards in 
accordance with section 456 of the MGA; 

 



Town of Hanna 
Bylaw 1026-2022 
Page 2 

 
(d) “Local Assessment Review Board” or “LARB” means the Local Assessment 

Review Board established in accordance with the MGA who hears complaints 
about assessment notices for: 

 
i. residential property with 3 or fewer dwelling units, or 
ii. farm land, or  
iii a tax notice other than a property tax notice, business tax notice or 

improvement tax notice. 
 
(e) “Member” means a member of the Central Alberta Regional Assessment 

Review Board; 
 
(f) “Minister” means the Minister determined by the Province to be responsible 

for the MGA;  
 
(g) “Partner Municipality” means a municipality who enters into an agreement with 

The City of Red Deer to jointly establish the Central Alberta Regional 
Assessment Review Board and who enacts a bylaw substantially in the form 
of this bylaw, as well as The City of Red Deer; 

 
(h) “Provincial Member” means a person appointed as a provincial member to a 

CARB by the Minister. 
 
 

4 PARTNER MUNICIPALITIES  
 

4.1 The Partner Municipalities, which includes The City of Red Deer, hereby jointly 
establish the Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board to exercise the 
functions of a Local Assessment Review Board and the functions of a Composite 
Assessment Review Board to have jurisdiction in their municipalities and those of 
the Partner Municipalities. 

 
4.2 Each Partner Municipality is responsible for establishing filing fees and 

administering policies in respect of refunding filing fees in accordance with the 
Municipal Government Act and the Matters Relating to Assessment Complaints 
Regulation. 

 
 

5  REGIONAL BOARD REVIEW COMMITTEE 
  

5.1 The Regional Board Review Committee is established and will consist of 5 
Administrators who volunteer from the Partner Municipalities. 

 
5.2 The term for Regional Board Review Committee volunteers is one year. 
 
5.3 The Regional Board Review Committee may establish their own procedures to 

carry out their function, but in doing so, they shall have due regard for procedural 
fairness. 

 
 
 
 
 



Town of Hanna 
Bylaw 1026-2022 
Page 3 

 
5.4 The Regional Board Review Committee: 
 

(a) reviews applications from persons applying to be Members and makes 
recommendations to the Designated Officer concerning the appointment of 
Members from the applicants; and 

 
(b) may make recommendations to the Designated Officer concerning the 

revocation of appointment of a Member. 
 
 
6 APPOINTMENT OF BOARD MEMBERS 

 
6.1 The Designated Officer shall appoint not more than 20 citizens-at-large to be 

Members of the Board. 
 
6.2 The total number of Members appointed shall be determined by the Designated 

Officer.  
 
 
7 ESTABLISHMENT OF BOARDS 
 

7.1 The following joint Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Boards are 
established: 

 
(a) a LARB that hears complaints referred to in section 460.1(1) of the MGA; and 
 
(b) a CARB that hears complaints referred to in section 460.1(2) of the MGA. 

 
 

8 JURISDICTION OF THE BOARD 
   

8.1 The Boards shall have jurisdiction to exercise the functions of a Local Assessment 
Review Board and the functions of a Composite Assessment Review Board under 
the provisions of the MBA in respect of assessment complaints made by taxpayers 
of a Partner Municipality.  

 
 

9 TERMS OF APPOINTMENT 
  

9.1 Unless otherwise stated in their appointment letters, all Members are appointed for 
three year terms. 

 
9.2 If a vacancy on the Board occurs at any time the Regional Board Review 

Committee may recommend the appointment of a new person to fill the vacancy 
for the remainder of that term. 

 
9.3 A Member may be re-appointed to the Board at the expiration of his/her term. 
 
9.4 A Member may resign from the Board at any time on written notice to the 

Designated Officer to that effect. 
 
9.5 The Designated Officer may remove a Member for cause or misconduct, or on the 

recommendation of the Regional Board Review Committee. 



Town of Hanna 
Bylaw 1026-2022 
Page 4 

 
9.6 Upon being appointed, the Member must successfully complete the training as 

prescribed by the Minister prior to participating in a hearing. 
 
 
10 REGIONAL ADVISORY GROUP 
  

10.1 Members will elect from among themselves a Regional Advisory Group consisting 
of up to 4 members, and comprised  of one Advisory Group Chair and up to 3 Vice 
Chairs. 

 
10.2 The Regional Advisory Group will report to the Designated Officer on all matters 

affecting the Board and will:  
 

(a) assist the Designated Officer in developing policies governing hearings, 
conduct of Members, and other Board matters; 

 
(b) evaluate Member performance to identify areas where additional training may 

be required and prepare reports regarding performance and re-appointment 
of Members;  

 
(c) ensure other Members are provided mentoring; and 
 
(d) act as a liaison between the Members and the Designated Officer. 

 
10.3 The duties of the Regional Advisory Group Chair include: 
 

(a) chairing meetings of the Regional Advisory Group;   
 
(b)  establishing agendas for the Regional Advisory Group meetings in 

consultation with the Designated Officer;  
  
(c) liaising with the Designated Officer, Councils, and Partner Municipalities on 

behalf of the Board; 
 
(d) appointing a Regional Advisory Group member as Acting Chair of the 

Regional Advisory Group; 
 
(e) signing correspondence on behalf of the Regional Advisory Group. 

 
10.4 If the Regional Advisory Group Chair ceases to be a Member or is unable or 

unwilling to fulfil the Chair’s duties, the Designated Officer may appoint one of the 
Vice Chairs to serve as Acting Chair until the Chair resumes the Chair’s duties or 
the Members elect a new Chair. 

 
 

11 DESIGNATED OFFICER OF THE CENTRAL ALBERTA REGIONAL ASSESSMENT 
REVIEW BOARD  

 
11.1 The position of Designated Officer of the Central Alberta Regional Assessment 

Review Board to carry out the duties and functions of the Assessment Review 
Board Clerk is established. 

 
 



Town of Hanna 
Bylaw 1026-2022 
Page 5 

 
11.2 The Town of Hanna jointly appoints The City of Red Deer Legislative Services 

Manager as the Assessment Review Board Clerk of the Central Alberta Regional 
Assessment Review Board.   

 
11.3 The salary of the Designated Officer will be made routinely available in the City of 

Red Deer annual Financial Statements. 
 
11.4 The Designated Officer is authorized to enter into agreements on behalf of the 

Board with other non-partner municipalities to provide Assessment Review Board 
Services. 

 
11.5 The Designated Officer: 
 

(a) shall assist the Board in fulfilling its mandate.  
 

(b) may delegate to an employee, the duties and functions of the Assessment 
Review Board Clerk provided they have successfully completed the training 
as prescribed by the Minister.  
 

(c) shall consult with the Regional Advisory Group to set policies, procedures and 
directives governing hearing processes, Member conduct and other Board 
matters.  
 

(d) shall consult with the Regional Advisory Group and Members on matters 
affecting the Boards. 
 

(e) shall issue instructions to independent legal counsel for the Boards when 
required. 
 

(f) may, at the request of a Presiding Officer of a panel of the Board sign orders, 
decisions and documents issued by the Board.  
 

(g) may, at the request of the Chair of the Regional Advisory Group, sign 
documents issued by the Regional Advisory Group.  
 

(h) may set fees payable for persons to obtain copies of the Board’s decisions 
and documents. 

 
12 HEARINGS 
 

12.1 Hearings will be held at such time and place as determined by the Designated 
Officer.  

 
12.2 The proceedings of the Board must be conducted in public except where the Board 

deals with information protected from disclosure under the provisions of the 
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act and section 464.1 of the 
MGA. 

  



Town of Hanna 
Bylaw 1026-2022 
Page 6 

 
13 COMMENCEMENT OF COMPLAINTS 
 

13.1 In accordance with the MGA, a taxpayer may commence an assessment complaint 
by: 

 
(a) mailing or delivering to the address specified on the assessment or tax notice 

a complaint in the form set out in the ‘Matters Relating to Assessment 
Complaints Regulation’, Alberta Regulation 201/2017 (Regulations) and within 
the time limits specified in the MGA; and  

 
(b) paying the applicable fee. 

 
 
14 RULES OF ORDER  
 

14.1 The Board will conduct hearings in accordance with: 
 

(a) the provisions of the MGA and related regulations. 
 
(b) principles of natural justice and procedural fairness; and 
 
(c) its policies and procedures. 
 

 
15 NOTICE OF DECISIONS & RECORD OF HEARING 
 

15.1  After the hearing of a complaint, the Designated Officer shall:  
 
(a) under direction of the Presiding Officer, assist with the preparation of the 

decision or order of the Board and the reasons for the decision in compliance 
with the MGA; and 

 
(b) arrange for the order or decision of the Board to be signed; and distributed in 

accordance with the requirements under the MGA and Regulations.  
 

15.2 The Designated Officer will maintain a Record of Hearing in accordance with the 
MGA and the Regulations. 

 
 

16 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 
 

16.1 In accordance with its authority under MGA, Council hereby delegates to the 
Designated Officer the authority to: 

 
(a) appoint members to the Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board; 
 
(b) jointly prescribe the remuneration and expenses payable to each Member of 

the Board;   
 
(c) jointly appoint a Member as the Chair of the LARB and the CARB and 

prescribe the term of office and the remuneration and expenses, if any, 
payable to the Chair; and 

 



Town of Hanna 
Bylaw 1026-2022 
Page 7 

(d) set fees payable by persons wishing to be involved as a party or intervenor in 
a hearing before an assessment review board and for obtaining copies of an 
assessment review board’s decisions and other documents.  

 
 
17 REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS 
 

17.1 The City of Red Deer shall pay for the administrative costs associated with the 
operation of the Board as set out in the agreement with the City of Red Deer. 

 
 
18 ENACTMENT/REPEAL  
 

18.1 Bylaw 954-2010 is hereby repealed. 
 
18.2 This Bylaw shall come into effect on the date of final reading. 
 

 
  
READ A FIRST TIME THIS 13th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2022. 
 
READ A SECOND TIME THIS 13th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2022. 
 
 
   
 Mayor Danny Povaschuk  
 
 
   
 Chief Administrative Officer 
 Kim Neill 
 
 
READ A THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED THIS 13th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2022.   
 
 
   
 Mayor Danny Povaschuk 
 
 
   

 Chief Administrative Officer 
 Kim Neill 



 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\11.00 Council Reports & 
Roundtable .docx 

Date: September 13, 2022     Agenda Item No:  11.00 

Council Reports & Roundtable 

Recommended Motion 

 
That Council accepts the Council Reports for information. 
 

Background 

 
This portion of the agenda allows Council members to provide written or verbal reports to 
update other members of Council with information resulting from meetings they have 
attended since the previous Council meeting.   
 
Council members are encouraged to ask questions or seek clarification on any information 
presented. 
 

Communications 

 
The highlights of the reports may be communicated through the Town of Hanna Social Media 
programs. 
 

Financial Implications 

 

 
Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
N/A 
 
 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 

Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 

 

Attachments 

 
1. Mayor Povaschuk   
2. Councillor Beaudoin 
3. Councillor Crowle 
4. Councillor Murphy 
5. Councillor Olsen 
6. Councillor Warwick 

 
Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 



COUNCIL REPORTS & ROUNDTABLE 
Council Date:  Sept 13, 2022 6 pm 

Prepared by:  Sandra Beaudoin 
 

Meeting: Council Information Meeting 
Location: Town Council 
Date & Time: Aug 31, 2022  8:30 am 
AHS presentation was interesting & informative.  No plans to close Hanna Hospital.  The 
importance of returning services to Hanna Hospital was discussed. 
Special Areas Officers presented & provided info to their activities. 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS 
Meeting: Funding Municipal Infrastructure 
Location: ZOOM 
Date & Time: Sept 8, 2022  3 pm 
 
Meeting: Harvest Sky Economic Board 
Location: HUB 
Date & Time: Sept 13, 2022  10 am 
 
Meeting: Council Meeting 
Location: Council 
Date & Time: Sept 13, 2022  6 pm 
 
Meeting: Heartland Tour 
Location: Sheerness Power Plant 
Date & Time: Sept 14, 2022  1 pm 
 
Meeting: Municipal Planning Commission 
Location: Council 
Date & Time: Sept 15, 2022  12:30 pm 
 
Meeting: Alberta Municipalities Conference 
Location: Calgary 
Date & Time: Sept 21-23, 2022  
 
Meeting: Council Info Meeting 
Location: Council 
Date & Time: Sept 28, 2022  8:30 am 
 
 
 
 



COUNCIL REPORTS & ROUNDTABLE 
 
Council Date: Sept 13, 2022 
Prepared by: Councilor Kyle Olsen  
 
 
 
Event: Clubhouse Manager Interviews 
Location: Ascend Boardroom 
Date & Time: Aug 25, 1:00 PM 
 
Held successful interviews for the Clubhouse Manager position. 
 
 
Event: Golf Course Board Meeting 
Location: Clubhouse 
Date & Time: Aug 26, 6:00 PM 
 
Discussed disciplinary policies for members acting inappropriately, cart shed 
maintenance, and moving forward with a new shop. 
 
Event: Council Info Session 
Location: Council Chambers 
Date & Time: Aug 31 8:30 AM 
 
Upcoming Meetings 
 
Sept 15 Palliser Board Meeting 
Sept 15 HLC AGM and Board Meeting 
Sept 21-23 Alberta Municipalities Conference 
Sept 28 Council Info Session 



 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\12.00 Correspondence 
Items.docx 

Date: September 13, 2022     Agenda Item No:  12.00 

Correspondence 

Recommended Motion 

 
That Council accepts Correspondence items 12.01 – 12.10 for information 
 

Background 

 
Council is provided with various items of correspondence at each meeting for information.  
Correspondence may be in the form of a letter, note, newsletter, report or meetings minutes.  
Meeting minutes are most often from committees or boards that are affiliated with the Town 
but may not have an appointed representative. 
 
Correspondence items do not usually require a response from Council, however if there is 
an item that a Councillor would like to bring forward for action, a motion can be put on the 
floor at that time.   
 
Council members are encouraged to ask questions or seek clarification on any information 
presented. 
 

Communications 

 
Highlights of the correspondence reports may be communicated through the Town Social 
Medial Programs. 
 

Financial Implications 

 

 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 

Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 

 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
N/A 

 
Attachments 

 
1. Ron Smith – Road Dust Concern 113 – 1 Street East 
2. Town of Tofield – Victim Services Redesign Concerns 
3. Response Letter from Minister Shandro – Town of Tofield 
4. Harvest Sky Animal Rescue – Branding and Name Change 
5. Office of the Lieutenant Governor – March – August 2022 Update 
6. Tanya Thorn – Towns South – Director Update 
7. BePrepared 8-Week Challenge Report 
8. Emergency Preparedness Week 2022 Summary Report 
9. Town of Wake  
10. The Hanna Seals – thank you  

 
Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 









 
ALBERTA 

JUSTICE AND SOLICITOR GENERAL 
____________________________ 

Office of the Minister 
MLA, Calgary-Acadia 

204 Legislature Building, Edmonton, Alberta  T5K 2B6  Canada   Telephone  780-427-2339   Fax  780-422-6621 
Suite 105, 10333 Southport Road SW, Calgary, Alberta  T2W 3X6 Canada  Telephone  403-640-1363 

Classification: Protected A 

 
 
     AR 52074 

Sent via email to jedwards@tofieldalberta.ca  

 

 
Her Worship Debra Dueck 
Mayor 
The Town of Tofield 
P.O. Box 30 
5407 – 50 Street 
Tofield AB  T0B 4J0 
 
Dear Mayor Dueck: 
 
Thank you for your letter of August 23, 2022 regarding the provincial changes to victim services 
announced July 19, 2022. I would like to reassure you that these changes, including the new 
zonal governance model, have been designed to ensure services to victims of crime remain 
consistent and uninterrupted across all regions of the province, including Tofield, while also 
ensuring that victims are supported locally from within their own communities. I appreciate the 
opportunity to provide further information about the redesign work that has occurred to date as it 
relates to your municipality and others like it.  
 
I would like to ensure that you have the most up-to-date information about the consultations and 
engagements completed during, and following, the MLA led Review of Victim Services that 
took place over 2020/2021. The Rural Municipalities of Alberta (RMA) and the Alberta 
Municipalities (AM) were invited to, and attended, the engagements. This was intentional to 
ensure a linkage and a mechanism for information sharing. In addition, a specific meeting was 
held with the RMA and AM to ensure they were comfortable with this approach, and by all 
indications they were. Further, all MLAs were also invited, regardless of political affiliation.  
 
Other engaged individuals and organizations included: 

• Volunteers, staff, and board members of police-based victim services units;  
• Victim-serving community and specialized organizations such as child advocacy centres, 

sexual assault centres, and domestic violence service providers; 
• Representatives from the Alberta Police-based Victim Services Association; 
• The Alberta Association of Chiefs of Police; 

…/2 
 

August 26, 2022

mailto:jedwards@tofieldalberta.ca


- 2 - 

 

Classification: Protected A 

• The Alberta Federation of Police Associations; 
• The Royal Canadian Mounted Police;  
• Legal community representatives such as the Criminal Trial Lawyers Association and 

Legal Aid Alberta; and 
• Indigenous organizations such as the Awo Taan Healing Lodge Society, and Métis Child 

and Family Services Society.  
 
I can advise that the changes to victim services are particularly centred around stabilizing and 
improving program governance and leadership at a high level, in addition to the significantly 
enhances supports and services available to victims. There are no plans to interrupt service 
delivery within communities or at detachments, nor to disrupt victim service workers from 
continuing to engage in the important work they do. In fact, it is intended that these same locally 
based services will continue to be offered through the new zonal governance model, in the same 
co-located manner as they are now, but with more flexibility and sustainability than could be 
offered under the current governance model. In the new model, local front-line victim services 
workers will be supported by a core of professional support staff at the zonal level that will 
provide financial, legal, and human resource services; direct supervision and resource 
coordination; and personal support and guidance for each employee. There is no reduction in 
paid positions within the new model, in fact with the new professional support staff there will be 
approximately 40 additional positions available to Albertans.  
 
To ensure that you and your colleagues have the most accurate and up to date information as to 
how the new victim services zones will operate, I encourage you to follow up with Trent 
Forsberg, the director of Victim Services at Trent.Forsberg@gov.ab.ca. He would be happy meet 
with you and relay further detailed information about the changes to victim services programs, 
and provide you with the opportunity to ask specific questions.  
 
I also understand that you have a requested a meeting with MLA Jackie Lovely. I welcome the 
opportunity to have representatives from my office and our department staff who are leading this 
work attend this meeting. To schedule a meeting, please contact my scheduling coordinator Lisa 
Gentles at Lisa.Gentles@gov.ab.ca.  
 
I am appreciative of any time you would be willing to dedicate to gaining a complete 
understanding of the improvements planned to the systems that serve victims of crime in Alberta. 
Thank you for ensuring the needs of victims in your community continue to be met.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Honourable Tyler Shandro, QC, ECA 
Minister  
 
 
cc: Jackie Lovely, MLA Camrose 
 Alberta Municipalities  
 Rural Municipalities of Alberta 

mailto:Trent.Forsberg@gov.ab.ca
mailto:Lisa.Gentles@gov.ab.ca


  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

TO: 

 

Dear Mayor, Councilors, & Administration 

 

It is with great pleasure that I submit official notification that the Harvest Sky 

Animal Rescue Society (HSAR) has officially launched in replacement of the 

Hanna & District Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (Hanna 

SPCA). The HSAR will continue to provide the services rendered by the Hanna 

SPCA, all while striving to improve every aspect of our organization and its 

operations. The HSAR will remain a registered charity, thereby keeping the 

principles of transparency and openness. 

 

This rebrand reflects the evolution of Hanna and of our organization since its 

founding in 2005. With a new team and a new attitude, a new identity 

seemed fitting.  

 

As did the Hanna SPCA, the HSAR will continue to work with the Town of 

Hanna in managing both the domestic and feral animal populations within 

the town. With our combined efforts, we can work toward and achieve 

positive outcomes. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Trevor Kerr 

Chair of the Board of Directors 

 

Enclosure: Harvest Sky Animal Rescue Launch Press Release 

 

Town of Hanna 

302 2 Avenue West 

P.O. Box 430 

Hanna, AB 

 
 

DATE: 

August 24, 2022 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our Website: 

www.harvestskyrescue.ca 

 
 

Phone: 

403-854-3700 

 
 

Our Email: 

harvestskyrescue@gmail.com  

 
 

 



  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

New rescue, new name, same commitment.  

Harvest Sky Animal Rescue is open for business, and their volunteers and the 
companion animals they serve couldn’t be happier. 
 
“As an organization, we wanted to embrace the forward direction the Hanna area is taking and 
incorporate the Harvest Sky brand. The Hanna area isn’t the same as it was when the Hanna S.P.C.A. 
Pet Rescue and Shelter was started in 2005, and neither is our organization. So our name and look 
must portray that.” 
Trevor Kerr, Chairperson, Harvest Sky Animal Rescue 
 
The rescue has received overwhelming support from the community since announcing they had 
assumed operations of the Hanna S.P.C.A. in December 2021. In fact, since January 1, 2022, they have 
found furever homes for 24 cats and 2 dogs, and Hanna Mayor Povaschuk even raised $3,145 for the 
rescue by shaving his head! 
 
The new website, HarvestSkyRescue.ca, is up, as is their Facebook page. Followers of the current 
Hanna S.P.C.A. Facebook page are asked to move to the new page as it will be shut down shortly. A 
launch party for the rescue is scheduled for the fall, with details to follow on the website and 
Facebook.  
 
Harvest Sky Animal Rescue will continue to operate out of the Hanna S.P.C.A facility for the 
foreseeable future and the phone number, (403)854-3700 remains the same.  
 
Anyone interested in volunteering or looking for a new furry addition to their family can visit their 
website, Facebook page or the shelter by appointment.  
 

Related information 
www.harvestskyrescue.ca 

Facebook @HarvestSkyAnimalRescue 

Media Inquiries 

harvestskyrescue@gmail.com  

(403)854-3700 

 

 

 
 

News Release 
 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
August 24, 2022 

 

 

http://www.harvestskyrescue.ca/
https://www.facebook.com/HarvestSkyAnimalRescue
http://www.harvestskyrescue.ca/
https://www.facebook.com/HarvestSkyAnimalRescue
http://www.harvestskyrescue.ca/
https://www.facebook.com/HarvestSkyAnimalRescue














#BePrepared: https://www.alberta.ca/emergency-preparedness.aspx  

©2022 Government of Alberta  |  June 21, 2022  |  Municipal Affairs 
 Classification: Public 

  

#BePrepared 8-Week Challenge 
Website analytics at a glance 

Overview 

In February 2022, the Alberta Emergency Management Agency launched the first #BePrepared 8-week challenge. The 

challenge aimed to build capacity for preparedness public education by providing pre-drafted communications that partners 

could use to educate their community.  

Overall, we consider this initiative a success. Each weekly message led to an increase in views of the Be Prepared web pages 

and much higher quality engagement with preparedness information (increased time spent on webpages). 45 partners 

expressed interest in running the challenge, leading to an increase in partners’ social media posts sharing our content. We are 

encouraged by these results and intend to use this approach in future initiatives. 

Highlights 

 

 

Total page visits 

 

8,932 

+101%  

Compared to 2021 

Average time spent per visit  

 

11:28 

+762% 

Average time spent: 1:20 

Social media shares by partners 

 

58 

+300% 

Compared to previous 2 months 

Video views 

 

1,352 

+72% 

Compared to 2021  

Weekly stats  

Measured using Site Improve and YouTube analytics between February 1 and April 22, 2022 

Week Challenge topic /         

web page 

Total web 

  page visits 

Traffic growth from 2021 

(same period) 

Average time spent 

per visit 

YouTube 

views 

1 Hazards 371 45% 10:00 574 

2 Get informed N/A* N/A* 8:35 No video 

3 Knowing your community 487 30% 11:26 171 

4 Start a conversation 670 157% 10:05 No video 

5 Financial resilience 1,894 58% 14:12 104 

6 Gather supplies 2,396 152% 9:26 248 

7 Build an emergency kit 2,325 139% 13:27 255 

8 Make a plan 789 79% 14:33 No video 

  Total 8,932 101% 11:28 1,352 

*Alberta Emergency Alerts webpage (used in week 2) not included in tracking  

https://www.alberta.ca/emergency-preparedness.aspx


 
Classification: Public 

 

Emergency Preparedness Week 2022 

Summary Report 

Overview  

Emergency Preparedness Week (EP Week) is a national event that has run for more than 25 years in Canada 

and takes place annually during the first full week of May. Public Safety Canada coordinates this event in close 

collaboration with the provinces, territories and other partners. The Alberta Emergency Management Agency 

(AEMA) is responsible for coordinating the campaign for the Government of Alberta. This report summarizes the 

outcomes of the 2022 campaign. 

Campaign summary 

Goal: To build individual and community resilience and contribute to disaster risk reduction behaviours across 

Alberta.  

Approach: The AEMA engaged leaders across Alberta to create champions for preparedness public education. 

Tactics:  

 EP Week information session – hosted an 

information session for communities across Alberta 

to kick-off the EP Week campaign, share tools and 

resources. 

 AEA Test Alert Toolkit School resource guide – 

used the May 4th test alert to encourage youth to 

have a preparedness conversation. 

 Emergency Preparedness Week Toolkit – 

included seven pre-drafted communications to build 

capacity for the campaign at the local level.  

Outcome:  When compared to the 2021 campaign, 

there was a notable increase in leaders 

championing EP Week messaging and increased 

engagement at the individual level.  

 

 

Opportunities for EP Week 2023 

 

Key-Takeaway 

Alberta Emergency Alert – Test alerts 

Test alerts continue to be a twice a year untapped opportunity to prompt 

preparedness action. More work needs to be done to use the alerts as a rallying 

call.  

Lesson learned: The May 4th test alert text message did not include a link to the 

Be Prepared web page. This resulted in a 75% decrease in the public visiting 

Alberta.ca/BePrepared to learn more about how they can be better prepared.   

Community leaders should look for more opportunities to share preparedness 

information at a time when the risk is low, so they are better able to respond 

when the risk is high.  

Continue hosting 
information sessions 
for partners across 
Alberta

Look for opportunities 
to expand network 
and create 
preparedness 
champions

Build 
capacity Continue to use the 

Alberta Emergency 
Alert - test alert as a 
resilience booster

Look for opportunities 
to leverage other 
systems and existing 
frameworks to build 
capacity.

Leverage 
existing 

programs
Continue to utlize the 
EP Week Toolkit -
publish on Alberta.ca 
earlier 

Engage with partners 
earlier to account for 
campaign planning 
and approvals at the 
local level

Find 
efficiencies

AEA test  

May 1 to 9 web visits - 2022 (blue) vs 2021 (green) 







 

Council Meeting Agenda 
Background Information 

W:\11-05 Council Meeting Documents\Background Information\2022\09.1 Sep 13 Regular\13.00 Closed Session.docx 

Date: September 13, 2022      Agenda Item No: 13.00 

Closed Session 

Recommended Motion 

 
That Council move to Closed Session at  _______  p.m. to discuss the following agenda 
item 
 

13.1  Land Matter as per FOIP Section 16 & 17 
13.2 Personnel Matter as per FOIP Section 17 
 

 
That Council move to Regular Session at _______ p.m. 

 
Background 

 
The Municipal Government Act (MGA) says that a meeting or part of a meeting is 
considered to be closed to the public when  
(a) any members of the public are not permitted to attend the entire meeting or part of 

the meeting,  
(b) the council, committee or other body holding the meeting instructs any member of 

the public to leave the meeting or part of the meeting, other than for improper 
conduct, or  

(c) the council, committee or other body holding the meeting holds any discussions 
separate from the public during the meeting or part of the meeting.  

 
Section 197 of the MGA states that councils and council committees must conduct their 
meetings in public unless the matter to be discussed is within one of the exceptions to 
disclosure in Division 2 of Part 1 of the Freedom of Information and Protection of 
Privacy (FOIP) (s. 16 to 29). This section also indicates that a council or council committee 
must pass a resolution stating the reason and the section of FOIP that applies before 
closing all or any part of a meeting to the public. 
 
FOIP outlines the items that would allow a council to close a council meeting, which 
include matters where a public disclosure could be harmful to:  



 

 

• Third party business interests; (s. 16)  
• Third party personal privacy; (s. 17)  
• Individual or public safety; (s. 18 and 19)  
• Law enforcement; (s. 20)  
• Intergovernmental relations; (s. 21, 22, 23 and 24) and  
• Economic or other interests (s. 25, 26, 27, 28 and 29).  
 
Public bodies should not:  
• Reveal confidential employee evaluations; or  
• Disclose local public body confidences, or advice from officials; or  
• Disclose information that is subject to any kind of legal privilege.  

 
For example, a discussion regarding the employment of an individual should be held in-
camera to protect the privacy of that individual.   Also, preliminary meetings with 
developers (at their request/or council’s discretion) describing a new land use 
development should be held in a closed session (s. 16 of FOIP).  

 
The required motion to move to closed session, including the exceptions to disclosure 
applicable under FOIP is provided above. 

 
The only motion allowed during closed session is a motion to move to regular session.  
A recommended motion is provided above.   
 

Communications 

 
Highlights of the correspondence reports may be communicated through the Town 
Social Medial Programs. 
 

Financial Implications 

 

 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 

Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted Costs:  Unbudgeted Costs:  

Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 

 

 
Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
N/A 

 
Attachments 

 
N/A 

 
Reviewed by and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
Reviewed by: _________________________________________ 
 
Financial Review by: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 


	02.00 Agenda - September 13, 2022
	05.00 Meeting Minutes
	05.01 Minutes August 9, 2022 Regular Meeting
	05.02 Minutes August 31, 2022 Information Meeting

	06.01 Accounts Payable
	06.02 Statement of Revenue & Expense
	06.02.1 Statement of Revenue & Expense August 2022

	06.03 Budget Overview
	06.03.1 Budget Overview August 2022 

	08.00 Senior Administrative Officials Reports
	08.01 Chief Administrative Officer Report
	08.01.0 Signage Project - Bid Recommendation Letter
	08.01.1 Community Services Foreman Report
	08.01.1.1 Mirage Turf System Quote
	08.01.2 Community Services Coordinator Report - 09 2022
	08.03 Director of Public Works

	09.01 Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board Agreement
	09.01.1 Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement - City of Red Deer

	09.02  Waste Collection Contract Extension
	09.02.1 Residential Waste Collection Contract 2020-22 - Signed

	09.03 Hanna Seniors Amenity Zone Project Scope Amendment
	09.03.1 Urban Life Solutions Revised Tender Pricing - Removal of Electrical Conduit - Palliser Trail Pathway

	09.04 ATCO Electric Franchise Fee
	09.04.1 ATCO Electric Franchise Fee - Revenue Distribution
	09.04.2 ATCO Electric - Rider 

	09.05 Returning Officer's Report
	09.06  2022 Taxation Report 
	10.01 Bylaw 1026-2022 Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board Bylaw
	10.01.1 Bylaw 1026-2022 Central Alberta Regional Assessment Review Board Bylaw

	11.00 Council Reports & Roundtable 
	11.01 Councillor Beaudoin
	11.02 Councillor Olsen

	12.00 Correspondence Items
	12.01 Ronald Smith - Road Dust Concerns - 113 - 1st Street East
	12.02 Town of Tofield - VIctim Services Redesign Concerns
	12.03 Response Letter from Minister Shandro - Town of Tofield
	12.04 Harvest Sky Animal Rescue - Branding and Name Change
	12.05 Office of the Lieutenant Govenor - March - August 22 Update
	12.06 Tanya Thorn - Towns South - Director Update
	12.07 BePrepared 8-Week Challenge Report
	12.08 Emergency Preparedness Week 2022 Summary Report
	12.09 Town of Wake
	12.10 The Hanna Seals - thank you

	13.00 Closed Session



